
McCall Redevelopment Agency  February 20,2024 
Agenda 

McCall Redevelopment Agency 
Agenda 

February 20, 2024 – 8:00 am 
Legion Hall 

216 E. Park Street, McCall, ID 83638 and Teams Meeting  
 
This is both an in person and virtual meeting. All other people may attend virtually via Teams. Any member of the 
public can join and listen only to the meeting at 8:00 a.m. by calling in as follows: 208-634-8900 Meeting ID 744 
289 554# If there are any questions or you would like a computer link, contact Michelle Groenevelt, Community 

and Economic Development Director at mgroenevelt@mccall.id.us or (208)634-5229. 
 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Monty Moore, Colby Nielsen, Mike Maciaszek, Tabitha Martineau, Clair Bowman and 
Michelle Rentzsch, 1 vacancy 
 
CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM) 

• Expenses: Ratification and approval of paid invoices 
o Elam and Burke – December 31, 2023 

• Approval of December 5th and 19th, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
• Cash Flow and Financials - Linda Stokes 
• Action Item: Approval to reimburse The City of McCall for Board approved 

expenditures related to Parks and Recreation benches and trash receptacle – Linda 
Stokes  

o $22,000 Landscape Forms Inc 
• Action Item: Approval to reimburse The City of McCall for Redevelopment 

Association of Idaho 2024 Membership Dues – Linda Stokes 
o $450 RDAI 

• Action Item: UR/LIDD Draft Amendment Update and Approval of Opposition 
Letter from the MRA Board  

• Federal Transit Administration 5339 Grant for Civic Campus Park & Ride Project 
Update – Delta James 

• Local Art for Light Boxes Public Art Project Update – Delta James 
 
 
 

NEXT MEETING 
Next Regular Meeting – March 19, 2024 
 
ADJOURN 

 
American with Disabilities Act Notice:  McCall Legion Hall is accessible to persons with disabilities.  If you need 

assistance, contact City Hall at (208) 634-7142. 

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_NThiNmFiMDItNTNlNC00NzVmLTlhYWQtZjY4ZTg3ZjllNWFh%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%25223fcc6455-57cd-4466-86b4-8d7a5b85d741%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522c17aea77-a5be-4001-b6aa-99bc4c083021%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Crsantiago-govier%40mccall.id.us%7C60118dd6c25b466758ed08db8d190b39%7C3fcc645557cd446686b48d7a5b85d741%7C0%7C0%7C638258910942634137%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6zt2J1jwiki8AQkhPwT0%2FJbgMq9QjqMazu8tebpcTqg%3D&reserved=0




McCall Redevelopment Agency December 5, 2023 
Minutes 

McCall Redevelopment Agency 
Minutes -December 5, 2023 – 8:00 am 

Legion Hall 
216 E. Park Street, McCall, ID 83638 and Teams Meeting  

This was both an in person and virtual meeting. 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Monty Moore, Colby Nielsen, Mike Maciaszek, Tabitha Martineau, Clair Bowman and 
Michelle Rentzsch, 1 vacancy 

Tabitha Martineau was absent. Michelle Groenevelt and Meredith Todd were present 
for staff.  

CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM) 
• Expenses: Ratification and approval of paid invoices

o Elam and Burke – August 31, 2023
• Approval of August 29, 2023 Meeting Minutes

Member Rentzsch moved to approve the consent agenda. Member Nielsen seconded the motion. 
All members voted aye and the consent agenda was approved.  

NEW BUSINESS 
• Cash Flow and Financials (Linda Stokes)

Ms. Stokes reviewed the cash flow estimates and cash received from the district from Fiscal Year 
2023 and projections for Fiscal Year 2024, estimating a 2024 cash balance amount of $735,000 
by the fiscal year end of 2024 ($280,000 of upcoming tax increment income in 2024). 
Expenditures beyond the approved district budget would require a budget amendment.  

• Review of MRA Downtown West Plan

Ms. Groenevelt reviewed the Downtown West Urban Renewal District Plan to highlight the 
purposes of the Downtown West District and highlight the potential projects within it. The 
original (Railroad) district was established in 1990 and sunset in 2020, transitioning MRA into 
the Downtown West district that encompasses a mix of community commercial, medium-density 
residential, and civic uses and zones. State statute requires a particular set of characteristics be 
present in Urban Renewal Areas to be suitable project areas. The shape of the new district is 
based on information pulled from the Downtown Master Plan (2013), McCall Area 
Comprehensive Plan (2018), and the Transportation Master Plan (2017). The land in the district 
does have a high likelihood of change.  

Ms. Groenevelt summarized the stated goals and investment categories of the district that are 
within the Downtown West Plan, improvements emphasized streetscapes and infrastructure 
improvements that may serve beneficial uses. She highlighted those partnerships on local 

draft

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/ap/t-59584e83/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fteams.microsoft.com%2Fl%2Fmeetup-join%2F19%253ameeting_NThiNmFiMDItNTNlNC00NzVmLTlhYWQtZjY4ZTg3ZjllNWFh%2540thread.v2%2F0%3Fcontext%3D%257b%2522Tid%2522%253a%25223fcc6455-57cd-4466-86b4-8d7a5b85d741%2522%252c%2522Oid%2522%253a%2522c17aea77-a5be-4001-b6aa-99bc4c083021%2522%257d&data=05%7C01%7Crsantiago-govier%40mccall.id.us%7C60118dd6c25b466758ed08db8d190b39%7C3fcc645557cd446686b48d7a5b85d741%7C0%7C0%7C638258910942634137%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=6zt2J1jwiki8AQkhPwT0%2FJbgMq9QjqMazu8tebpcTqg%3D&reserved=0


McCall Redevelopment Agency  December 5, 2023 
Minutes 

housing, public markets (indoor/outdoor), Lakefront access, and renewal of underutilized 
property, and public land acquisition were included in the Downtown West Plan.   
 
The successes of the Lakefront Placemaking Plan were reviewed to show the value of sticking to 
a plan that activates a certain area in a way that is community driven. The resulting 
improvements to Legacy and Brown Parks honored the original designs closely.  
 
Assumptions within the Downtown West Plan include:  

- Approximately 15.3-million-dollar worth of projects 
- A 20-year plan period (rather than 30) 
- Projects are implemented on a cash basis rather than debt finance. 
- MRA will pay its administrative costs of $20,000 per year. 

 
Some of the Big Ideas for the urban renewal district envisioned in the Comprehensive Plan 
include expanding Legacy Park further West, turning the Lake St corridor into a Mainstreet 
design with widened sidewalks. 
Members talked about the possibilities for car-free plazas, lakefront land acquisition, and other 
visionary ideas. 
 

• Future Potential MRA Projects (Action Item) 
 
Ms. Groenevelt, Nathan Stewart (Public Works Director), Delta James (Economic Development 
Planner) and other City Staff reviewed potential projects within the Urban Renewal District 
including various opportunities for mixed-use and local housing development, Civic Campus 
projects, Highway Bypass design and downtown streetscapes etc.  
 
Members asked whether some of the design work through the RAISE (Bypass design) grant 
funding would be a fresh start, or whether design would be based on previous engineering 
investments by the City and District. Member Rentzsch voiced support for items 1, 4 and 9. 
Member Moore asked if undergrounding of power and internet infrastructure would be options 
for investment in the district. Attorney Conrad provided some clarification on the Grant Match 
ask for the group and stated that it is fine to take action on the grant match within the bounds of 
the list of potential projects.  
 
Possible action: Move to approve match commitment for the ITD 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities 
grant of an amount not to exceed $XX to support Civic Campus parking lot improvements. 
 
Alternative motion: Set a special meeting for 12/19 date to deliberate financial commitment to 
ITD 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities grant to support Civic Campus parking lot improvements and 
instruct staff to prepare a draft letter of support to this effect. (ACTION ITEM) 
 
Member Bowman made a motion to conduct a Special Meeting on December 19th, 2023.  
Member Moore seconded the motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 
 

• Presentation of Idaho & Ward Street Project   
 

Michael Hormaechea mentioned that the property he is redeveloping is currently worth 
approximately 1 million dollars and following the $35-40 million dollar improvement the tax 
increment in the district based on the projected development costs. He described expected 

draft



McCall Redevelopment Agency  December 5, 2023 
Minutes 

potential improvements such as pathways, sidewalks, intersections, sewer infrastructure 
improvements, etc. Members asked questions about whether tax abatement might be an option, 
and longer history of development in the McCall area. Ms. Conrad confirmed that TIF abatement 
partnerships are a common tool that might be available to reimburse costs of the development. 
Ms. Conrad will look more into the Tax Abatement concepts in time. More specific asks will be 
brought to the Board after the entitlement process.  
 

• Approval of 2024 Meeting Calendar – (Action Item) 
January 16  
February 20 
March 19 
July 16 
August 20  
November 19 
 

Member Bowman made a motion to approve the 2024 Meeting Calendar.  Member Rentzsch 
seconded the motion.  All members voted aye and the motion was carried.  

 
NEXT MEETING 

Next Regular Meeting –January 16, 2024 
 

ADJOURN 
 
Member Nielson made a motion to adjourn.  Member Moore seconded the motion.  All members 
voted aye, and the meeting was adjourned. 
 

 

draft



CITY OF MCCALL

COMBINED CASH INVESTMENT

DECEMBER 31, 2023

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/14/2024     06:14PM       PAGE: 1

COMBINED CASH ACCOUNTS

TOTAL COMBINED CASH

TOTAL UNALLOCATED CASH

CASH ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION

91 ALLOCATION TO DT W URBAN RENEWAL PRJ. (           11,248.34)

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS (           11,248.34)

ALLOCATION FROM COMBINED CASH FUND - 01-10100

ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE (           11,248.34)



CITY OF MCCALL

PAYABLES CLEARING FUND ALLOCATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2023

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/14/2024     06:14PM       PAGE: 2

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

TOTAL UNALLOCATED ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ALLOCATION RECONCILIATION

91 ALLOCATION TO DT W URBAN RENEWAL PRJ. (                450.00)

TOTAL ALLOCATIONS TO OTHER FUNDS (                450.00)

ALLOCATION FROM PAYABLE CLEARING FUND - 02-20200

ZERO PROOF IF ALLOCATIONS BALANCE (                450.00)



CITY OF MCCALL

BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2023

DT W URBAN RENEWAL PRJ.

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/14/2024     06:14PM       PAGE: 3

ASSETS

91-10100 CASH ALLOCATED TO OTHER FUNDS (           11,248.34)

91-11200 URD CHECKING ACCT. 68,216.73

91-11201 CASH - LGIP #3389 451,259.74

91-13100 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - OTHER 1,943.83

91-18000 PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLE 292,745.00

TOTAL ASSETS 802,916.96

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

91-20200 AP ALLOCATED TO FUNDS (                450.00)

91-20213 DUE TO OTHER FUNDS 22,000.00

91-21100 DEFERRED REVENUE - PROP TAXES 284,364.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 305,914.00

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

91-29000 FUND BALANCE 471,904.68

91-29001 FUND BAL-RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANS (             9,612.54)

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 34,710.82

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 497,002.96

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 497,002.96

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 802,916.96



CITY OF MCCALL

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

DT W URBAN RENEWAL PRJ.

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/14/2024     06:14PM       PAGE: 4

TAX INCREMENT REVENUE

91-30-010-100.0 TAX INCREMENT 28,816.00 30,906.61 275,000.00 244,093.39 11.2

TOTAL TAX INCREMENT REVENUE 28,816.00 30,906.61 275,000.00 244,093.39 11.2

INTEREST REVENUE

91-30-045-100.0 INTEREST INCOME 2,001.31 5,985.12 10,000.00 4,014.88 59.9

TOTAL INTEREST REVENUE 2,001.31 5,985.12 10,000.00 4,014.88 59.9

APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE

91-30-050-997.0 APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE .00 .00 232,306.00 232,306.00 .0

TOTAL APPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE .00 .00 232,306.00 232,306.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 30,817.31 36,891.73 517,306.00 480,414.27 7.1



CITY OF MCCALL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 3 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

DT W URBAN RENEWAL PRJ.

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

FOR ADMINISTRATION USE ONLY 25 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED 02/14/2024     06:14PM       PAGE: 5

DT W URBAN RENEWAL PRJ EXPNSES

OPERATING EXPENSE

91-40-150-300.0 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (                  450.00) .00 20,000.00 20,000.00 .0

91-40-150-410.0 INSURANCE .00 2,172.00 5,000.00 2,828.00 43.4

91-40-150-657.0 BANK CHARGES 3.35 8.91 500.00 491.09 1.8

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE (                  446.65) 2,180.91 25,500.00 23,319.09 8.6

CAPITAL EXPENSE

91-40-200-998.0 RESERVED - FUTURE CAPITAL .00 .00 491,806.00 491,806.00 .0

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSE .00 .00 491,806.00 491,806.00 .0

TOTAL DT W URBAN RENEWAL PRJ EXPNSE (                  446.65) 2,180.91 517,306.00 515,125.09 .4

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 30,817.31 36,891.73 517,306.00 480,414.27 7.1

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES (                  446.65) 2,180.91 517,306.00 515,125.09 .4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 31,263.96 34,710.82 .00 (           34,710.82) .0

CONTINGENCY

REV/EXP WITH CONTINGENCY 31,263.96 34,710.82 .00 (           34,710.82) .0



TOTAL Remaining

OCT '23 NOV '23 DEC '23 JAN '24 FEB '24 MAR '24 APR '24 MAY '24 JUN '24 JUL '24 AUG '24 SEP '24 YTD Budget

-                2,091            28,816          167,918        -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                198,825    76,175        

1,948            2,036            2,001            2,083            2,082            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                10,150      (150)            

1,948 4,126 30,817 170,001 2,082 76,025.

OCT '23 NOV '23 DEC '23 JAN '24 FEB '24 MAR '24 APR '24 MAY '24 JUN '24 JUL '24 AUG '24 SEP '24
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -            232,306      

232,306

1,948 4,126 30,817 170,001 2,082 308,332

TOTAL Remaining

OCT '23 NOV '23 DEC '23 JAN '24 FEB '24 MAR '24 APR '24 MAY '24 JUN '24 JUL '24 AUG '24 SEP '24 YTD Budget
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                550           19,450          

   Elam & Burke, P.A. -                  -                  -                  550                 -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  550            
   Star News - Public Notice -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -             
    ID Redevelopment Assoc. 450                 -                  (450)                -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -             
Engineering Services -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                
Insurance 2,172            -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                2,172        2,828            
Bank Charges 5                   1                   3                   -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                9               491               

-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -            7,500            
-                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -                -            484,306        

2,627 1 -447 550 514,575

OCT '23 NOV '23 DEC '23 JAN '24 FEB '24 MAR '24 APR '24 MAY '24 JUN '24 JUL '24 AUG '24 SEP '24 YTD
452,783 452,105 456,230 487,494 656,945 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027

1,948 4,126 30,817 170,001 2,082 208,974
-2,627 -1 447 -550 -2,731 

-679 4,125 31,264 169,451 2,082 206,243
452,105 456,230 487,494 656,945 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027 659,027

Cash Flow - FY24
McCall Redevelopment Agency.

Cash Received

1- Cash from Operations

Tax Increment

Interest

Cash from Operations

2- Additional Cash Received

Appropriated Fund Bal.
Additional Cash Received

Cash Received

1- Expenditures from Operations
Professional Services

Reserved for Future Prjcts

Public Art - Mural & Art on 
Light Boxes

SubTotal Spent on Operations

Cash Received
Cash Spent

Net Cash Flow (Rev over Exp.)
Cash Balance

Cash Flow

Initial Cash Balance

Revised 2/14/2024



DocuSign Envelope ID: 106AODA0-9791-4283-B050-68751 FF364FE 

McCall Redevelopment Agency 

Minutes 

March 28, 2023 - 8:00 am 

Legion Hall 

216 E. Park Street, McCall, ID 83638 and Teams Meeting 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Monty Moore, Colby Nielsen, Mike Maciaszek, Tabitha Martineau and Michelle Rentzsch 

were present. Clair Bowman was absent. City Treasurer Linda Stokes, Economic 

Development Planner Delta James, Consulting Attorney Meghan Conrad, Parks and 

Recreation Director Kurt Wolf and Permit Tech and Addressing Coordinator Rachel 

Santiago-Govier were also present. 

CONSENT AGENDA (ACTION ITEM) 

• Expenses: Ratification and approval of paid invoices
o Elam and Burke - February 2023

This item had not been received and was removed from the consent agenda.

• Approval of February 28, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes

Member Rentzsch asked to correct the motion to elect "Clair Bowman" to the electrical box 

selection committee. 

Member Rentzsch made a motion to approve the consent agenda with the changes stated to the 

minutes. Member Martineau seconded the motion. All members voted aye and the motion 

carried. 

NEW BUSINESS 

• Review of Financials and Cash Flow Report- City Treasurer Linda Stokes

Treasurer Stokes presented the Cash Flow and Financials. 

• Presentation of FY2022 Audited Financial Statements - The Audit will not be ready
until the next meeting on April 18th .

• Action Item: Accept the FY2022 Audit and authorizing filing with the State
Controller's Office and other public entities as may be required by Idaho law - This
item will now be at the April 18th meeting.

• Public Comment: 2022 Annual Report

Member Rentzsch made a motion to open the Public Hearing. Member Nielsen seconded the 
motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 

McCall Redevelopment Agency 

Amended Agenda (3.21.23) 

March 28, 2023 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 106AODA0-9791-4283-B050-68751 FF364FE 

No written comments were received, and no one was present online or in the room to give 
comment. 

Member Martineau made a motion to close the Public Hearing. Member Nielsen seconded the 
motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 

• Action Item: Consider Resolution No. 03-2023 approving the 2022 Annual Report,
authorize filing the Annual Report with the City Clerk and the State Controller's
Office as required by Idaho law, and authorize publication of the legal notice of
filing.

Member Rentzsch made a motion to approve Resolution 03-2023. Member Nielsen seconded the 
motion. All member voted aye and the motion carried. 

• Action Item: Downtown benches and trash receptacles funding requests - Parks &
Recreation Director Kurt Wolf

Mr. Wolf gave a presentation to ask for funding for 6 benches and 1 trash receptacle in the 
downtown core. He showed a few pictures of which benches and receptacles they would like to 
use. These are durable, easy for staff to maintain and hold up well to the weather and heavy 
usage. With regard to invoicing, LOT money for Brown Park items would be kept separate and 
any matching funds from MRA would be utilized in the downtown core. He is getting feedback 
from the business and staff on what numbers of each item they think is needed. 

Ms. Martineau was in full support and stated as a town that sees heavy tourist usage in the 
downtown, benches are very nice for people that want and need to just sit and enjoy the sites or 
people who need to rest. 

Ms. Rentzsch thinks the items Mr. Wolf presented to the Board are fairly priced. 

$21,417 on MRA is on the memo. 

Member Rentzsch made a motion to approvefundingfor 6 benches and 1 trash receptacle not to 
exceed $22,000 for locations in the Downtown West Tax Allocation District. Member Moore 
seconded the motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 

• Action Item: Approval of Downtown Mural recommended artist Jay Rasgorshek
Economic Dev. Planner Delta James

The artist selection committee met and chose Jay Rasgorshek. The wall that is currently 
recommended is the West wall of McPaws Thrift Store. It's very visible and easily accessible. 
We will also give the artist the opportunity to give input on which wall or walls ( as the budget 
allows) they would prefer if they room in their budget for more than one. 

Member Martineau made a motion to approve Mr. Rasgorshek as the artist. Member Rentzsch 
seconded the motion. All members voted aye and the motion carried. 

• Volunteer appreciation event reminder RSVP- April 12, 2023
• Legislative Update

McCall Redevelopment Agency 

Amended Agenda (3.21.23) 

March 28, 2023 

lstokes
Highlight



DocuSign Envelope ID: 106AODA0-9791-4283-B050-68751 FF364FE 

Ms. Conrad gave the Legislative update to the board. HB292 is a compromise bill to provide 
property tax relief was being considered. Those funds would be replaced with sales tax. In some 
districts this creates a significant hit. Our revenue allocation area is less dependent on 
homeowners. The Governor vetoed the bill yesterday. There are some other bills popping up to 
replace portions of the bill that was vetoed. 

Urban renewal specific bills related to Data Centers in a RAA like the one in Kuna have been 
proposed. If they qualify for a sales tax exemption, than tax revenue funds cannot be used to 
improve the area they are in. The goal would be to preserve the tool of Urban Renewal. RAJ has 
opposed that bill. 

NEXT MEETING 

Next Regular Meeting-TBD hopefully in April for the item related to the Audit for 2022. 

Possibly April 181h
. 

ADJOURN 

Member Rentzsch made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Member Nielsen seconded the motion. 

All members voted aye and the meeting was adjourned at 8:58. 

Signed: April 18, 2023 

�:��:;

9

;:0vS�tk
��

7
�a

9C'i4���ek 
MRA Chair 

McCall Redevelopment Agency 

Amended Agenda (3.21.23) 

Attest: 

GocuSigned by: 

�,,.d,,d >-d""""Po-{fo-v>ie,,i, 

��fffrago-Govier 
Secretary 

March 28, 2023 



VENDOR:  LANDSCAPEFORMSINC (18382) 
7800EASTMICHIGANAVE
KALAMAZOO MI 49048 9/14/202398153

DATEINVOICE # DESCRIPTIONAMOUNT GLACCOUNT # 

8/31/2023000018551726,407.50MRAFundsof $22,000willcoverthecostof 28-59-150-570.0

TotalAmount: 26,407.50

9/14/2023

26,407.50** 

Twenty-SixThousandFourHundredSevenand50/100Dollars*** 

LANDSCAPEFORMSINC
7800EASTMICHIGANAVE
KALAMAZOO MI 49048

VENDOR: LANDSCAPEFORMSINC (18382) 9/14/202398153

DATEINVOICE # DESCRIPTIONAMOUNT

8/31/2023000018551726,407.50MRAFundsof $22,000willcoverthecostof

TotalAmount:$ 26,407.50







VENDOR:  REDEVELOPMENT ASSOC. OFIDAHO (25593) 
776ERIVERSIDEDRSTE240
EAGLE ID 83616 12/28/2023101

DATEINVOICE #DESCRIPTIONAMOUNT GLACCOUNT # 

10/01/2023M16013 242024MEMBERSHIP DUES450.00 91-40-150-300.0

TotalAmount: 450.00

12/28/2023

450.00** 

DIRECTDEPOSIT ***** 

REDEVELOPMENT ASSOC. OFIDAHO
776ERIVERSIDEDRSTE240
EAGLE ID 83616

VENDOR: REDEVELOPMENT ASSOC. OFIDAHO (25593) 12/28/2023101

DATEINVOICE #DESCRIPTIONAMOUNT

10/01/2023M16013 242024MEMBERSHIP DUES450.00

TotalAmount:$450.00



91-40-150-300



From: Michelle Groenevelt
To: Mike Maciaszek; Colby Nielsen; martineautabitha@gmail.com; Michelle Rentzsch; Monty Moore; Clair Bowman;

Rachel Santiago-Govier
Subject: FW: RAI LEGISLATIVE ALERT - ACTION REQUIRED- UR/LIDD Draft Summary
Date: Wednesday, February 14, 2024 8:39:36 AM
Attachments: Local Economic Development Draft.pdf

Letter to Legislatures re UR and LIDD.docx
Importance: High

All,

Please see email and attachments. This item will be on the agenda next week for a letter from
the MRA agency but please feel free to contact your legislators as an individual before then
and share if others who may be interested.

Thanks,
Michelle

From: Meghan Conrad <msc@elamburke.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 9, 2024 3:50 PM
To: ceckles@cityofkimberly.org; midura2008@gmail.com; brad@perspective-planning.com;
LRadford@parsonsbehle.com; tonyb@ignitecda.org; terry@alturaidaho.com; mhumble@tfid.org;
Ryan Armbruster <rpa@elamburke.com>; Meghan Conrad <msc@elamburke.com>; Kim Kline
<ksk@elamburke.com>; Russ@westerbergassoc.com; Michelle Groenevelt
<mgroenevelt@mccall.id.us>; glennascott@frontiernet.net; jbrunelle@ccdcboise.com;
pkushlan@fiberpipe.net; rskinner@skinnerfawcett.com; jmcdevitt@skinnerfawcett.com;
mwilliams@cityofjerome.org; slawrence@ccdcboise.com; tom.clark@ucdenver.edu;
trothweiler@tfid.org; mcgeehan@uidaho.edu; rmorgan@cityofchubbuck.us;
brentjtolman@gmail.com; terry.butikofer@ecipda.net; Cynthia.rose@gcura.org;
DHillam@cityofchubbuck.us; rvalley2@msn.com; eagleurbanrenewal@gmail.com;
jfleischman@ci.moscow.id.us; dwoodruff@ccdcboise.com; sbybee@mindspring.com;
driggsurachair@gmail.com; driggsura@gmail.com; benn@bennbrocksomeandassociates.com;
jchen@ccdcboise.com; kpacker@idahocities.org; sfrick@ketchumidaho.org;
lisa.horowitz@haileycityhall.org; bothwella@cityofnampa.us; sellersr@cityofnampa.us;
criddle@ci.moscow.id.us; Abbey R. Germaine <arg@elamburke.com>;
jreynolds@middletoncity.com; middletonura@gmail.com; maciaszek@frontiernet.net;
leslie.garner@rupert.id.us; leon@rathdrum.org; janet@calyx-weaver.com; SBarigar@tfid.org;
Sgrow@cityoflewiston.org; taylor@alturaidaho.com; Peyton@bennbrocksomeandassociates.com;
troy@athenian-partners.com; maustin@cityofammon.us; mcleveland@welchcomer.com;
jamemich@isu.edu; scott.miller@rexburg.org; cortezk@cityofnampa.us; wsanner@idahofalls.gov;
meridiandevelopmentcorp@gmail.com; lthomas@priestriver-id.gov; bboyer@burleyidaho.org;
longca@cityofnampa.us; dtorres@meridiancity.org; rigginscity@gmail.com; leslie@alturaidaho.com
Subject: RAI LEGISLATIVE ALERT - ACTION REQUIRED- UR/LIDD Draft Summary
Importance: High

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless
you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

mailto:mgroenevelt@mccall.id.us
mailto:mmaciaszek@mccall.id.us
mailto:cnielsen@mccall.id.us
mailto:martineautabitha@gmail.com
mailto:michellerentzsch@gmail.com
mailto:montymoore11@hotmail.com
mailto:cmbavalon@safelink.net
mailto:rsantiago-govier@mccall.id.us



DRAFT
DRRCB238


----------------------------------------------------------------------
LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF IDAHO


Sixty-seventh Legislature Second Regular Session - 2024
----------------------------------------------------------------------


This bill draft contains confidential and privileged information exempt
from disclosure under Section 74-109(1), Idaho Code. If you have received
this message by mistake, please notify us immediately by replying to this
message or telephoning the Legislative Services Office at (208) 334-2475.


AN ACT1
RELATING TO MUNICIPAL CORPORATIONS; AMENDING SECTION 50-2006, IDAHO CODE,2


TO PROVIDE FOR THE DISSOLVING OF AN URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY IN CERTAIN IN-3
STANCES; AMENDING SECTION 50-2012, IDAHO CODE, TO PROVIDE THAT CERTAIN4
BONDS MAY NOT HAVE A MATURITY DATE OF LONGER THAN TWENTY YEARS; AMENDING5
SECTION 50-2018, IDAHO CODE, TO REVISE A DEFINITION; AMENDING SECTION6
50-2903, IDAHO CODE, TO REVISE A DEFINITION; AMENDING SECTION 50-2904,7
IDAHO CODE, TO PROVIDE THAT NO DURATION OR EXTENSION MAY EXCEED TWENTY8
YEARS IN CERTAIN INSTANCES; AMENDING SECTION 50-2908, IDAHO CODE, TO9
REVISE A PROVISION REGARDING A REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA AND TO ESTABLISH10
PROVISIONS REGARDING CERTAIN REVENUE ALLOCATION AREAS; AMENDING TITLE11
50, IDAHO CODE, BY THE ADDITION OF A NEW CHAPTER 32, TITLE 50, IDAHO12
CODE, TO ESTABLISH PROVISIONS REGARDING LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOP-13
MENT DISTRICTS; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE14
DATE.15


Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Idaho:16


SECTION 1. That Section 50-2006, Idaho Code, be, and the same is hereby17
amended to read as follows:18


50-2006. URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY.19
(1) (a) There is hereby created in each municipality an independent20
public body corporate and politic to be known as the "urban renewal21
agency" that was created by resolution as provided in section 50-2005,22
Idaho Code, before July 1, 2011, for the municipality; provided, that23
such agency shall not transact any business or exercise its powers here-24
under until or unless the local governing body has made the findings25
prescribed in section 50-2005, Idaho Code.26
(b) An urban renewal agency created after July 1, 2011, shall not trans-27
act any business or exercise its powers provided for in this chapter28
until a majority of qualified electors, voting in a citywide or coun-29
tywide election, depending on the municipality in which such agency is30
created, vote to authorize such agency to transact business and exer-31
cise its powers provided for in this chapter. If prior to July 1, 2011,32
the local governing body has made the findings prescribed in paragraph33
(a) of this subsection, then such agency shall transact business and34
shall exercise its powers hereunder and is not subject to the require-35
ments of this paragraph.36
(2) Upon satisfaction of the requirements under subsection (1) of this37


section, the urban renewal agency is authorized to transact the business and38
exercise the powers hereunder by a board of commissioners to be established39
as follows:40


(a) Unless provided otherwise in this section, the mayor, by and with41
the advice and consent of the local governing body, shall appoint a42


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


2


board of commissioners of the urban renewal agency, which shall consist1
of not less than three (3) commissioners nor more than nine (9) commis-2
sioners. In the order of appointment, the mayor shall designate the3
number of commissioners to be appointed, and the term of each, provided4
that the original term of office of no more than two (2) commissioners5
shall expire in the same year. The commissioners shall serve for terms6
not to exceed five (5) years, from the date of appointment, except that7
all vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term.8
(b) For inefficiency or neglect of duty or misconduct in office, a com-9
missioner may be removed by a majority vote of the local governing body10
only after a hearing and after he shall have been given a copy of the11
charges at least ten (10) days prior to such hearing and have had an op-12
portunity to be heard in person or by counsel. Any commission position13
that becomes vacant at a time other than the expiration of a term shall14
be filled by the mayor or chair of the board of county commissioners, if15
that is the local governing body, by and with the advice and consent of16
the local governing body, including the mayor, if applicable, and shall17
be filled for the unexpired term.18
(c) By enactment of an ordinance, the local governing body may appoint19
and designate, from among its members, members of the board of commis-20
sioners of the urban renewal agency, provided that such representation21
shall be less than a majority of the board of commissioners of the urban22
renewal agency of the members of the local governing body on and after23
July 1, 2017, in which case all the rights, powers, duties, privileges,24
and immunities vested by the urban renewal law of 1965, and as amended,25
in an appointed board of commissioners, shall be vested in the local26
governing body, which shall, in all respects when acting as an urban re-27
newal agency, be acting as an arm of state government, entirely separate28
and distinct from the municipality, to achieve, perform, and accomplish29
the public purposes prescribed and provided by said urban renewal law of30
1965, and as amended.31
(d) By enactment of an ordinance, the local governing body may termi-32
nate the appointed board of commissioners and thereby appoint and des-33
ignate itself as the board of commissioners of the urban renewal agency34
for not more than one (1) calendar year.35
(e) By enactment of an ordinance, the local governing body may provide36
that the board of commissioners of the urban renewal agency shall be37
elected at an election held for such purpose on one (1) of the November38
dates provided in section 34-106, Idaho Code, and the ordinance may pro-39
vide term limits for the commissioners. In this case, all the rights,40
powers, duties, privileges, and immunities vested by the urban renewal41
law of 1965, and as amended, in an appointed board of commissioners,42
shall be vested in the elected board of commissioners of the urban43
renewal agency, which shall, in all respects when acting as an urban re-44
newal agency, be acting as an arm of state government, entirely separate45
and distinct from the municipality, to achieve, perform, and accomplish46
the public purposes prescribed and provided by said urban renewal law47
of 1965, and as amended. The provisions of chapter 66, title 67, Idaho48
Code, shall apply to elected commissioners, and the county election law49
shall apply to the person running for commissioner as if the person were50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


3


running for county commissioner. In the event of a vacancy in an elected1
commissioner position, the replacement shall be appointed by the mayor2
or chair of the board of county commissioners, if that is the local gov-3
erning body, by and with the advice and consent of the local governing4
body, and shall be filled for the unexpired term.5
(3) In all instances, a member of the board of commissioners of the ur-6


ban renewal agency must be a resident of the county where the urban renewal7
agency is located or is doing business.8


(4) A commissioner shall receive no compensation for his services but9
shall be entitled to the necessary expenses, including travel expenses, in-10
curred in the discharge of his duties. Each commissioner shall hold office11
until his successor has been appointed and has qualified. A certificate of12
the appointment or reappointment of any commissioner shall be filed with the13
clerk of the municipality and such certificate shall be conclusive evidence14
of the due and proper appointment of such commissioner.15


(5) (a) The powers of an urban renewal agency shall be exercised by the16
commissioners thereof. A majority of the commissioners shall consti-17
tute a quorum for the purpose of conducting business and exercising the18
powers of the agency and for all other purposes. Action may be taken by19
the agency upon a vote of a majority of the commissioners present, un-20
less in any case the bylaws shall require a larger number.21
(b) The commissioners shall elect the chairman, cochairman, or vice22
chairman for a term of one (1) year from among their members. An agency23
may employ an executive director, technical experts, and such other24
agents and employees, permanent and temporary, as it may require, and25
determine their qualifications, duties, and compensation. For such26
legal service as it may require, an agency may employ or retain its own27
counsel and legal staff.28
(c) An agency authorized to transact business and exercise powers un-29
der this chapter shall file, with the local governing body, on or be-30
fore March 31 of each year a report of its activities for the preced-31
ing calendar year, which report shall include the financial data and au-32
dit reports required under sections 67-1075 and 67-1076, Idaho Code.33
The agency shall be required to hold a public meeting to report these34
findings and take comments from the public. At the time of filing the35
report, the agency shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation36
in the community a notice to the effect that such report has been filed37
with the municipality and the state controller and that the report is38
available for inspection during business hours in the office of the city39
clerk or county recorder, in the office of the agency, and at all times40
on the website of the state controller.41
(d) An urban renewal agency shall have the same fiscal year as a mu-42
nicipality and shall be subject to the same audit requirements as a mu-43
nicipality. An urban renewal agency shall be required to prepare and44
file with its local governing body an annual financial report and shall45
prepare, approve, and adopt an annual budget for filing with the local46
governing body, for informational purposes. A budget means an annual47
estimate of revenues and expenses for the following fiscal year of the48
agency.49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


4


(6) An urban renewal agency shall comply with the public records law1
pursuant to chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code, open meetings law pursuant to2
chapter 2, title 74, Idaho Code, the ethics in government law pursuant to3
chapter 4, title 74, Idaho Code, and the competitive bidding provisions of4
chapter 28, title 67, Idaho Code.5


(7) The local governing body may dissolve its urban renewal agency at6
any time, provided such agency has no outstanding bonded indebtedness. Upon7
dissolution of the urban renewal agency, title to all property of the urban8
renewal agency shall revert to the municipality.9


SECTION 2. That Section 50-2012, Idaho Code, be, and the same is hereby10
amended to read as follows:11


50-2012. ISSUANCE OF BONDS. (a) An urban renewal agency shall have12
power to issue bonds from time to time in its discretion to finance the un-13
dertaking of any urban renewal project under this act, including, without14
limiting the generality thereof, the payment of principal and interest upon15
any advances for surveys and plans or preliminary loans, and shall also have16
power to issue refunding bonds for the payment or retirement of such bonds17
previously issued by it. Such bonds shall be made payable, as to both princi-18
pal and interest, solely from the income, proceeds, revenues, and funds of19
the urban renewal agency derived from or held in connection with its under-20
taking and carrying out of urban renewal projects under this act: Provided,21
however, that payment of such bonds, both as to principal and interest, may22
be further secured by a pledge of any loan, grant or contribution from the23
federal government or other source, in aid of any urban renewal projects24
under this act, and by a mortgage of any such urban renewal projects, or any25
part thereof, title to which is in the urban renewal agency.26


(b) Bonds issued under this section shall not constitute an indebted-27
ness within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation28
or restriction, and shall not be subject to the provisions of any other law or29
charter relating to the authorization, issuance or sale of bonds. Bonds and30
other obligations of an urban renewal agency (and such bonds and obligations31
shall so state on their face) shall not be a debt of the municipality, the32
state or any political subdivision thereof, and neither the municipality,33
the state nor any political subdivision thereof shall be liable thereon, nor34
in any event shall such bonds or obligations be payable out of any funds other35
than those of said urban renewal agency. Bonds issued under the provisions36
of this act are declared to be issued for an essential public and governmen-37
tal purpose and, together with interest thereon and income therefrom, shall38
be exempted from all taxes.39


(c) Bonds issued under this section shall be authorized by resolution40
or ordinance of the urban renewal agency and may be issued in one or more se-41
ries and shall bear such date or dates, be payable upon demand or mature at42
such time, or times, bear interest at a rate or rates, be in such denomina-43
tion or denominations, be in such form either with or without coupon or reg-44
istered, carry such conversion or registration privileges, have such rank or45
priority, be executed in such manner, be payable in such medium of payment,46
at such place or places, and be subject to such terms of repayment, at such47
place or places, and be subject to such terms of redemption (with or without48


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


5


premium), be secured in such manner, and have such other characteristics, as1
may be provided by such resolution or ordinance, or trust indenture or mort-2
gage issued pursuant thereto. Provided, however, that no bond authorized3
after July 1, 2024, may have a maturity date of longer than twenty (20) years.4


(d) Such bonds may be sold at not less than par at public or private5
sales held after notice published prior to such sale in a newspaper having a6
general circulation in the area of operation and in such other medium of pub-7
lication as the agency may determine or may be exchanged for other bonds on8
the basis of par: Provided, that such bonds may be sold to the federal gov-9
ernment at private sale at not less than par, and, in the event less than all10
of the authorized principal amount on such bonds is sold to the federal gov-11
ernment, the balance may be sold at private sale at not less than par at an in-12
terest cost to the agency of not to exceed the interest cost to the agency of13
the portion of the bonds sold to the federal government.14


(e) In case any of the officials of the urban renewal agency whose sig-15
natures appear on any bonds or coupons issued under this act shall cease to16
be such officials before the delivery of such bonds, such signatures shall,17
nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if such18
officials had remained in office until such delivery. Any provision of any19
law to the contrary notwithstanding, any bonds issued pursuant to this act20
shall be fully negotiable.21


(f) In any suit, action or proceeding involving the validity or en-22
forceability of any bond issued under this act or the security therefor,23
any such bond reciting in substance that it has been issued by the agency24
in connection with an urban renewal project, as herein defined, shall be25
conclusively deemed to have been issued for such purpose and such project26
shall be conclusively deemed to have been planned, located and carried out in27
accordance with the provisions of this act.28


SECTION 3. That Section 50-2018, Idaho Code, be, and the same is hereby29
amended to read as follows:30


50-2018. DEFINITIONS. The following terms wherever used or referred31
to in this chapter, shall have the following meanings, unless a different32
meaning is clearly indicated by the context:33


(1) "Agency" or "urban renewal agency" shall mean a public agency cre-34
ated by section 50-2006, Idaho Code.35


(2) "Municipality" shall mean any incorporated city or town, or county36
in the state.37


(3) "Public body" shall mean the state or any municipality, township,38
board, commission, authority, district, or any other subdivision or public39
body of the state.40


(4) "Local governing body" shall mean the council or other legislative41
body charged with governing the municipality.42


(5) "Mayor" shall mean the mayor of a municipality or other officer or43
body having the duties customarily imposed upon the executive head of a mu-44
nicipality.45


(6) "Clerk" shall mean the clerk or other official of the municipality46
who is the custodian of the official records of such municipality.47


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


6


(7) "Federal government" shall include the United States of America or1
any agency or instrumentality, corporate or otherwise, of the United States2
of America.3


(8) "Deteriorated area" shall mean an area in which there is a predomi-4
nance of buildings or improvements, whether residential or nonresidential,5
which by reason of dilapidation, deterioration, age or obsolescence, inad-6
equate provision for ventilation, light, air, sanitation, or open spaces,7
high density of population and overcrowding, or the existence of conditions8
which endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or any combination9
of such factors is conducive to ill health, transmission of disease, infant10
mortality, juvenile delinquency, or crime, and is detrimental to the public11
health, safety, morals or welfare. Provided however, this definition shall12
not apply to any agricultural operation, as defined in section 22-4502(2),13
Idaho Code, absent the consent of the owner of the agricultural operation14
or to any forest land as defined in section 63-1701(4), Idaho Code, absent15
the consent of the forest landowner, as defined in section 63-1701(5), Idaho16
Code, except for an agricultural operation or forest land that has not been17
used for three (3) consecutive years.18


(9) "Deteriorating area" shall mean an area which by reason of the pres-19
ence of a substantial number of deteriorated or deteriorating structures,20
predominance of defective or inadequate street layout, faulty lot layout21
in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility or usefulness, insanitary or22
unsafe conditions, deterioration of site or other improvements, diversity23
of ownership, tax or special assessment delinquency exceeding the fair value24
of the land, defective or unusual conditions of title, or the existence of25
conditions which endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or any26
combination of such factors, substantially impairs or arrests the sound27
growth of a municipality, retards the provision of housing accommodations28
or constitutes an economic or social liability and is a menace to the public29
health, safety, morals or welfare in its present condition and use; pro-30
vided, that if such deteriorating area consists of open land the conditions31
contained in the proviso in section 50-2008(d), Idaho Code, shall apply; and32
provided further, that any disaster area referred to in section 50-2008(g),33
Idaho Code, shall constitute a deteriorating area. Provided however, this34
definition shall not apply to any agricultural operation, as defined in35
section 22-4502(2), Idaho Code, absent the consent of the owner of the agri-36
cultural operation or to any forest land as defined in section 63-1701(4),37
Idaho Code, absent the consent of the forest landowner, as defined in section38
63-1701(5), Idaho Code, except for an agricultural operation or forest land39
that has not been used for three (3) consecutive years.40


(10) "Urban renewal project" may include undertakings and activities of41
a municipality in an urban renewal area for the elimination of deteriorated42
or deteriorating areas and for the prevention of the development or spread43
of slums and blight, and may involve slum clearance and redevelopment in an44
urban renewal area, or rehabilitation or conservation in an urban renewal45
area, or any combination or part thereof in accordance with an urban renewal46
plan. Such undertakings and activities may include:47


(a) Acquisition of a deteriorated area or a deteriorating area or por-48
tion thereof;49
(b) Demolition and removal of buildings and improvements;50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


7


(c) Installation, construction, or reconstruction of streets, utili-1
ties, parks, playgrounds, off-street parking facilities, public facil-2
ities or buildings and other improvements necessary for carrying out in3
the urban renewal area the urban renewal objectives of this chapter in4
accordance with the urban renewal plan;5
(d) Disposition of any property acquired in the urban renewal area, in-6
cluding sale, initial leasing or retention by the agency itself, at its7
fair value for uses in accordance with the urban renewal plan except for8
disposition of property to another public body;9
(e) Carrying out plans for a program of voluntary or compulsory repair10
and rehabilitation of buildings or other improvements in accordance11
with the urban renewal plan;12
(f) Acquisition of real property in the urban renewal area which, under13
the urban renewal plan, is to be repaired or rehabilitated for dwelling14
use or related facilities, repair or rehabilitation of the structures15
for guidance purposes, and resale of the property;16
(g) Acquisition of any other real property in the urban renewal area17
where necessary to eliminate unhealthful, insanitary or unsafe condi-18
tions, lessen density, eliminate obsolete or other uses detrimental to19
the public welfare, or otherwise to remove or to prevent the spread of20
blight or deterioration, or to provide land for needed public facili-21
ties;22
(h) Lending or investing federal funds; and23
(i) Construction of foundations, platforms and other like structural24
forms.25
(11) "Urban renewal area" means a deteriorated area or a deteriorating26


area or a combination thereof which the local governing body designates as27
appropriate for an urban renewal project. Such an area created on or af-28
ter July 1, 2024, or the expansion of an earlier created urban renewal area,29
for which the expansion is made on or after July 1, 2024, shall not include30
any agriculture or single family residential properties, nor any undevel-31
oped properties, unless such undeveloped properties were previously devel-32
oped for non agricultural purposes.33


(12) "Urban renewal plan" means a plan, as it exists from time to time,34
for an urban renewal project, which plan:35


(a) Shall conform to the general plan for the municipality as a whole36
except as provided in section 50-2008(g), Idaho Code; and37
(b) Shall be sufficiently complete to indicate such land acquisition,38
demolition and removal of structures, redevelopment, improvements,39
and rehabilitation as may be proposed to be carried out in the urban40
renewal area, zoning and planning changes, if any, land uses, maximum41
densities, building requirements, and any method or methods of financ-42
ing such plan, which methods may include revenue allocation financing43
provisions.44
(13) "Related activities" shall mean:45
(a) Planning work for the preparation or completion of a community-wide46
plan or program pursuant to section 50-2009, Idaho Code; and47
(b) The functions related to the acquisition and disposal of real prop-48
erty pursuant to section 50-2007(d), Idaho Code.49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


8


(14) "Real property" shall include all lands, including improvements1
and fixtures thereon, and property of any nature appurtenant thereto, or2
used in connection therewith, and every estate, interest, right and use,3
legal or equitable, therein, including terms for years and liens by way of4
judgment, mortgage or otherwise.5


(15) "Bonds" shall mean any bonds, including refunding bonds, notes,6
interim certificates, certificates of indebtedness, debentures or other7
obligations.8


(16) "Obligee" shall include any bondholder, agents or trustees for any9
bondholders, or lessor demising to the municipality property used in connec-10
tion with urban renewal, or any assignee or assignees of such lessor's inter-11
est or any part thereof, and the federal government when it is a party to any12
contract with the municipality.13


(17) "Person" shall mean any individual, firm, partnership, corpora-14
tion, company, association, joint stock association, or body politic; and15
shall include any trustee, receiver, assignee, or other person acting in a16
similar representative capacity.17


(18) "Area of operation" shall mean the area within the corporate limits18
of the municipality and the area within five (5) miles of such limits, except19
that it shall not include any area which lies within the territorial bound-20
aries of another incorporated city or town or within the unincorporated area21
of the county unless a resolution shall have been adopted by the governing22
body of such other city, town or county declaring a need therefor.23


(19) "Board" or "commission" shall mean a board, commission, depart-24
ment, division, office, body or other unit of the municipality.25


(20) "Public officer" shall mean any officer who is in charge of any de-26
partment or branch of the government of the municipality relating to health,27
fire, building regulations, or to other activities concerning dwellings in28
the municipality.29


SECTION 4. That Section 50-2903, Idaho Code, be, and the same is hereby30
amended to read as follows:31


50-2903. DEFINITIONS. The following terms used in this chapter shall32
have the following meanings, unless the context otherwise requires:33


(1) "Act" or "this act" means this revenue allocation act.34
(2) "Agency" or "urban renewal agency" means a public body created pur-35


suant to section 50-2006, Idaho Code.36
(3) "Authorized municipality" or "municipality" means any county or37


incorporated city that has established an urban renewal agency or by or-38
dinance has identified and created a competitively disadvantaged border39
community.40


(4) Except as provided in section 50-2903A, Idaho Code, "base assess-41
ment roll" means the equalized assessment rolls, for all classes of taxable42
property, on January 1 of the year in which the local governing body of an43
authorized municipality passes an ordinance adopting or modifying an urban44
renewal plan containing a revenue allocation financing provision, except45
that the base assessment roll shall be adjusted as follows: the equalized46
assessment valuation of the taxable property in a revenue allocation area47
as shown upon the base assessment roll shall be reduced by the amount by48


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


9


which the equalized assessed valuation as shown on the base assessment roll1
exceeds the current equalized assessed valuation of any taxable property2
located in the revenue allocation area and by the equalized assessed val-3
uation of taxable property in such revenue allocation area that becomes4
exempt from taxation subsequent to the date of the base assessment roll.5
The equalized assessed valuation of the taxable property in a revenue allo-6
cation area as shown on the base assessment roll shall be increased by the7
equalized assessed valuation, as of the date of the base assessment roll, of8
taxable property in such revenue allocation area that becomes taxable after9
the date of the base assessment roll. Any increase in valuation due to prop-10
erty owned, leased, or used in the operation of a business entity that makes11
capital investments in one (1) or more data centers, as defined in section12
63-3622VV(2)(f), Idaho Code, after July 1, 2020, in amounts of at least two13
hundred fifty million dollars ($250,000,000) in the aggregate within the14
first five (5) years after commencement of construction, that creates and15
maintains at least thirty (30) new jobs at the data center within two (2)16
calendar years after the commencement of operations, and that is located in17
a revenue allocation area for which no bonds have been issued pursuant to18
section 50-2909, Idaho Code, as of March 16, 2023, shall be added to the base19
assessment roll in the current tax year. An urban renewal plan containing20
a revenue allocation financing provision adopted or modified prior to July21
1, 2016, is not subject to section 50-2903A, Idaho Code. For plans adopted22
or modified prior to July 1, 2016, and for subsequent modifications of those23
urban renewal plans, the value of the base assessment roll of property within24
the revenue allocation area shall be determined as if the modification had25
not occurred.26


(5) "Budget" means an annual estimate of revenues and expenses for the27
following fiscal year of the agency. An agency shall, by September 1 of each28
calendar year, adopt and publish, as described in section 50-1002, Idaho29
Code, a budget for the next fiscal year. An agency may amend its adopted30
budget using the same procedures as used for adoption of the budget. For31
the fiscal year that immediately predates the termination date for an urban32
renewal plan involving a revenue allocation area or will include the termi-33
nation date, the agency shall adopt and publish a budget specifically for the34
projected revenues and expenses of the plan and make a determination as to35
whether the revenue allocation area can be terminated before the January 136
of the termination year pursuant to the terms of section 50-2909(4), Idaho37
Code. In the event that the agency determines that current tax year revenues38
are sufficient to cover all estimated expenses for the current year and all39
future years, by September 1 the agency shall adopt a resolution advising and40
notifying the local governing body, the county auditor, and the state tax41
commission and recommending the adoption of an ordinance for termination of42
the revenue allocation area by December 31 of the current year and declaring43
a surplus to be distributed as described in section 50-2909, Idaho Code,44
should a surplus be determined to exist. The agency shall cause the ordi-45
nance to be filed with the office of the county recorder and the Idaho state46
tax commission as provided in section 63-215, Idaho Code. Upon notification47
of revenues sufficient to cover expenses as provided herein, the increment48
value of that revenue allocation area shall be included in the net taxable49
value of the appropriate taxing districts when calculating the subsequent50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


10


property tax levies pursuant to section 63-803, Idaho Code. The increment1
value shall also be included in subsequent notification of taxable value for2
each taxing district pursuant to section 63-1312, Idaho Code, and subsequent3
certification of actual and adjusted market values for each school district4
pursuant to section 63-315, Idaho Code.5


(6) "Clerk" means the clerk of the municipality.6
(7) "Competitively disadvantaged border community area" means a parcel7


of land consisting of at least forty (40) acres that is situated within the8
jurisdiction of a county or an incorporated city and within twenty-five (25)9
miles of a state or international border, which the governing body of such10
county or incorporated city has determined by ordinance is disadvantaged in11
its ability to attract business, private investment, or commercial develop-12
ment as a result of a competitive advantage in the adjacent state or nation13
resulting from inequities or disparities in comparative sales taxes, income14
taxes, property taxes, population or unique geographic features.15


(8) "Deteriorated area" means:16
(a) Any area, including a slum area, in which there is a predominance17
of buildings or improvements, whether residential or nonresidential,18
which by reason of dilapidation, deterioration, age or obsolescence,19
inadequate provision for ventilation, light, air, sanitation, or open20
spaces, high density of population and overcrowding, or the existence21
of conditions that endanger life or property by fire and other causes,22
or any combination of such factors, is conducive to ill health, trans-23
mission of disease, infant mortality, juvenile delinquency, or crime,24
and is detrimental to the public health, safety, morals or welfare.25
(b) Any area which by reason of the presence of a substantial number of26
deteriorated or deteriorating structures, predominance of defective or27
inadequate street layout, faulty lot layout in relation to size, ade-28
quacy, accessibility or usefulness, insanitary or unsafe conditions,29
deterioration of site or other improvements, diversity of ownership,30
tax or special assessment delinquency exceeding the fair value of the31
land, defective or unusual conditions of title, or the existence of con-32
ditions that endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or any33
combination of such factors, results in economic underdevelopment of34
the area, substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of a munici-35
pality, retards the provision of housing accommodations or constitutes36
an economic or social liability and is a menace to the public health,37
safety, morals or welfare in its present condition and use.38
(c) Any area which is predominately open and which because of obsolete39
platting, diversity of ownership, deterioration of structures or im-40
provements, or otherwise, results in economic underdevelopment of the41
area or substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of a munici-42
pality. The provisions of section 50-2008(d), Idaho Code, shall apply43
to open areas.44
(d) Any area which the local governing body certifies is in need of45
redevelopment or rehabilitation as a result of a flood, storm, earth-46
quake, or other natural disaster or catastrophe respecting which the47
governor of the state has certified the need for disaster assistance48
under any federal law.49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


11


(e) Any area which by reason of its proximity to the border of an ad-1
jacent state is competitively disadvantaged in its ability to attract2
private investment, business or commercial development which would3
promote the purposes of this chapter.4
(f) Deteriorated area does not mean not developed beyond agricultural,5
or any agricultural operation as defined in section 22-4502(1), Idaho6
Code, or any forest land as defined in section 63-1701(4), Idaho Code,7
unless the owner of the agricultural operation or the forest landowner8
of the forest land gives written consent to be included in the deterio-9
rated area, except for an agricultural operation or forest land that has10
not been used for three (3) consecutive years.11
(9) "Facilities" means land, rights in land, buildings, structures,12


machinery, landscaping, extension of utility services, approaches, road-13
ways and parking, handling and storage areas, and similar auxiliary and re-14
lated facilities.15


(10) "Increment value" means the total value calculated by summing the16
differences between the current equalized value of each taxable property in17
the revenue allocation area and that property's current base value on the18
base assessment roll, provided such difference is a positive value.19


(11) "Local governing body" means the city council or board of county20
commissioners of a municipality.21


(12) "Plan" or "urban renewal plan" means a plan, as it exists or may22
from time to time be amended, prepared and approved pursuant to sections23
50-2008 and 50-2905, Idaho Code, and any method or methods of financing such24
plan, which methods may include revenue allocation financing provisions.25


(13) "Project" or "urban renewal project" or "competitively disadvan-26
taged border areas" may include undertakings and activities of a municipal-27
ity in an urban renewal area for the elimination of deteriorated or deterio-28
rating areas and for the prevention of the development or spread of slums and29
blight and may involve slum clearance and redevelopment in an urban renewal30
area, or rehabilitation or conservation in an urban renewal area, or any com-31
bination or part thereof in accordance with an urban renewal plan. Such un-32
dertakings and activities may include:33


(a) Acquisition of a deteriorated area or a deteriorating area or por-34
tion thereof;35
(b) Demolition and removal of buildings and improvement;36
(c) Installation, construction, or reconstruction of streets, utili-37
ties, parks, playgrounds, open space, off-street parking facilities,38
public facilities, public recreation and entertainment facilities or39
buildings and other improvements necessary for carrying out, in the ur-40
ban renewal area or competitively disadvantaged border community area,41
the urban renewal objectives of this act in accordance with the urban42
renewal plan or the competitively disadvantaged border community area43
ordinance.44
(d) Disposition of any property acquired in the urban renewal area or45
the competitively disadvantaged border community area (including sale,46
initial leasing or retention by the agency itself) or the municipality47
creating the competitively disadvantaged border community area at its48
fair value for uses in accordance with the urban renewal plan except for49
disposition of property to another public body;50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


12


(e) Carrying out plans for a program of voluntary or compulsory repair1
and rehabilitation of buildings or other improvements in accordance2
with the urban renewal plan;3
(f) Acquisition of real property in the urban renewal area or the com-4
petitively disadvantaged border community area that, under the urban5
renewal plan, is to be repaired or rehabilitated for dwelling use or re-6
lated facilities, repair or rehabilitation of the structures for guid-7
ance purposes, and resale of the property;8
(g) Acquisition of any other real property in the urban renewal area9
or competitively disadvantaged border community area where necessary10
to eliminate unhealthful, insanitary or unsafe conditions, lessen den-11
sity, eliminate obsolete or other uses detrimental to the public wel-12
fare, or otherwise to remove or to prevent the spread of blight or dete-13
rioration, or to provide land for needed public facilities or where nec-14
essary to accomplish the purposes for which a competitively disadvan-15
taged border community area was created by ordinance;16
(h) Lending or investing federal funds; and17
(i) Construction of foundations, platforms and other like structural18
forms.19
(14) "Project costs" includes, but is not limited to:20
(a) Capital costs, including the actual costs of the construction of21
public works or improvements, facilities, buildings, structures, and22
permanent fixtures; the demolition, alteration, remodeling, repair or23
reconstruction of existing buildings, structures, and permanent fix-24
tures; the acquisition of equipment; and the clearing and grading of25
land;26
(b) Financing costs, including interest during construction and capi-27
talized debt service or repair and replacement or other appropriate re-28
serves;29
(c) Real property assembly costs, meaning any deficit incurred from the30
sale or lease by a municipality of real or personal property within a31
revenue allocation district;32
(d) Professional service costs, including those costs incurred for ar-33
chitectural, planning, engineering, and legal advice and services;34
(e) Direct administrative costs, including reasonable charges for the35
time spent by city or county employees in connection with the implemen-36
tation of a project plan;37
(f) Relocation costs; and38
(g) Other costs incidental to any of the foregoing costs.39
(15) "Revenue allocation area" means that portion of an urban renewal40


area or competitively disadvantaged border community area where the equal-41
ized assessed valuation (as shown by the taxable property assessment rolls)42
of which the local governing body has determined, on and as a part of an urban43
renewal plan, is likely to increase as a result of the initiation of an urban44
renewal project or competitively disadvantaged border community area. No45
revenue allocation area created on or after July 1, 2024, may include any46
agriculture or single family residential properties, nor any undeveloped47
properties, unless such undeveloped properties were previously developed48
for non agricultural purposes. The base assessment roll or rolls of revenue49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


13


allocation area or areas shall not exceed at any time ten percent (10%) of the1
current assessed valuation of all taxable property within the municipality.2


(16) "State" means the state of Idaho.3
(17) "Tax" or "taxes" means all property tax levies upon taxable prop-4


erty.5
(18) "Taxable property" means taxable real property, personal prop-6


erty, operating property, or any other tangible or intangible property7
included on the equalized assessment rolls.8


(19) "Taxing district" means a taxing district as defined in section9
63-201, Idaho Code, as that section now exists or may hereafter be amended.10


(20) "Termination date" means a specific date no later than twenty (20)11
years from the effective date of an urban renewal plan or as described in sec-12
tion 50-2904, Idaho Code, on which date the plan shall terminate. Every ur-13
ban renewal plan shall have a termination date that can be modified or ex-14
tended subject to the twenty (20) year maximum limitation. Provided how-15
ever, the duration of a revenue allocation financing provision may be ex-16
tended as provided in section 50-2904, Idaho Code.17


SECTION 5. That Section 50-2904, Idaho Code, be, and the same is hereby18
amended to read as follows:19


50-2904. AUTHORITY TO CREATE REVENUE ALLOCATION AREA. An authorized20
municipality is hereby authorized and empowered to adopt, at any time, a21
revenue allocation financing provision, as described in this chapter, as22
part of an urban renewal plan or competitively disadvantaged border com-23
munity area ordinance. A revenue allocation financing provision may be24
adopted either at the time of the original adoption of an urban renewal plan25
or the creation by ordinance of a competitively disadvantaged border com-26
munity area or thereafter as a modification of an urban renewal plan or the27
ordinance creating the competitively disadvantaged border community area.28
Urban renewal plans existing prior to the effective date of this section may29
be modified to include a revenue allocation financing provision. Except as30
provided in subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) of this section, no revenue al-31
location provision of an urban renewal plan or competitively disadvantaged32
border community area ordinance, including all amendments thereto, shall33
have a duration exceeding twenty (20) years from the date the ordinance is34
approved by the municipality; and provided further, no additions to the land35
area of an existing revenue allocation area shall be interpreted to or shall36
cause an extension of the date of the twenty (20) year limit that was orig-37
inally established for the revenue allocation area. Notwithstanding these38
limitations, the duration of the revenue allocation financing provision may39
be extended if:40


(1) The maturity date of any bonds issued to provide funds for a spe-41
cific project in the revenue allocation area and payable from the revenue al-42
location financing provision exceeds the duration of the revenue allocation43
financing provision, provided such bond maturity is not greater than twenty44
(20) years; or45


(2) The urban renewal agency determines that it is necessary to refi-46
nance outstanding bonds payable from the revenue allocation financing pro-47


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


14


vision to a maturity exceeding the twenty (20) year duration of the revenue1
allocation financing provision in order to avoid a default on the bonds; or2


(3) The local governing body has adopted an urban renewal plan or com-3
petitively disadvantaged border community area ordinance or an amendment to4
an urban renewal plan or competitively disadvantaged border community area5
ordinance prior to July 1, 2000, in which is defined the duration of the plan6
beyond a period of twenty (20) years, in which case the revenue allocation7
provision shall have a duration as described in such urban renewal plan or8
competitively disadvantaged border community area ordinance or may be ex-9
tended as set forth in subsection (2) of this section; provided, however,10
that no such duration or extension may exceed twenty (20) years beyond July11
1, 2024, except as provided in subsection (1) and (2);and12


(4) The local governing body has adopted an urban renewal plan or com-13
petitively disadvantaged border community area ordinance or an amendment to14
an urban renewal plan or competitively disadvantaged border community area15
ordinance after July 1, 2000, and prior to July 1, 2011, in which is defined16
the duration of the plan beyond a period of twenty (20) years in which case17
the revenue allocation provision shall have a duration as described in such18
urban renewal plan or competitively disadvantaged border community area19
ordinance. The duration of the revenue allocation financing provision set20
forth in this subsection may be extended if the maturity date of any bonds21
issued to provide funds for a specific project in the revenue allocation22
area and payable from the revenue allocation financing provision exceeds the23
duration of the revenue allocation financing provision, provided such bond24
maturity is not greater than thirty (30) years or may be extended as set forth25
in subsection (2) of this section.26


(5) During the extension set forth in subsections (1),(2),(3) and (4)27
of this section, any revenue allocation area revenues exceeding the amount28
necessary to repay the bonds during the period exceeding the maximum year ma-29
turity of the revenue allocation financing provision shall be returned to30
the taxing districts in the revenue allocation area on a pro rata basis.31


SECTION 6. That Section 50-2908, Idaho Code, be, and the same is hereby32
amended to read as follows:33


50-2908. DETERMINATION OF TAX LEVIES -- CREATION OF SPECIAL FUND. (1)34
For purposes of calculating the rate at which taxes shall be levied by or35
for each taxing district in which a revenue allocation area is located, the36
county commissioners shall, with respect to the taxable property located in37
such revenue allocation area, use the equalized assessed value of such tax-38
able property as shown on the base assessment roll rather than on the current39
equalized assessed valuation of such taxable property, except the current40
equalized assessed valuation shall be used for calculating the tax rate for:41


(a) Levies for refunds and credits pursuant to section 63-1305, Idaho42
Code, and any judgment pursuant to section 33-802(1), Idaho Code, cer-43
tified after December 31, 2007;44
(b) Levies permitted pursuant to section 63-802(3), Idaho Code, certi-45
fied after December 31, 2007;46


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


15


(c) Levies for voter-approved general obligation bonds of any taxing1
district and plant facility reserve fund levies passed after December2
31, 2007;3
(d) Levies for payment of obligations that have been judicially con-4
firmed pursuant to chapter 13, title 7, Idaho Code, and that meet the5
criteria of sections 63-1315 and 63-1316, Idaho Code;6
(e) Levies set forth in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this subsection,7
first certified prior to December 31, 2007, when the property affected8
by said levies is included within the boundaries of a revenue allocation9
area by a change in the boundaries of either the revenue allocation area10
or any taxing district after December 31, 2007; and11
(f) School levies for supplemental maintenance and operation pursuant12
to section 33-802(3) and (4), Idaho Code, approved after December 31,13
2007, and for emergency funds pursuant to section 33-805, Idaho Code,14
approved after July 1, 2015.15
(2) With respect to each such taxing district, the tax rate calculated16


under subsection (1) of this section shall be applied to the current equal-17
ized assessed valuation of all taxable property in the taxing district, in-18
cluding the taxable property in the revenue allocation area. The tax rev-19
enues thereby produced shall be allocated as follows:20


(a) To the taxing district shall be allocated and shall be paid by the21
county treasurer:22


(i) All taxes levied by the taxing district or on its behalf on23
taxable property located within the taxing district but outside24
the revenue allocation area;25
(ii) Except as otherwise provided in subparagraph (iv) of this26
paragraph, a portion of the taxes levied by the taxing district or27
on its behalf on the taxable property located within the revenue28
allocation area, which portion is the amount produced by applying29
the taxing district's tax rate determined under subsection (1) of30
this section to the equalized assessed valuation, as shown on the31
base assessment roll, of the taxable property located within the32
revenue allocation area;33
(iii) All taxes levied by the taxing district to satisfy obliga-34
tions specified in subsection (1) of this section; and35
(iv) In the case of a revenue allocation area first formed36
established or expanded to include the property on or after July37
1, 2020, and prior to July 1, 2024, all taxes levied by any highway38
district, unless the local governing body that created the revenue39
allocation area has responsibility for the maintenance of roads40
or highways. In the case of property located within a revenue al-41
location area prior to July 1, 2020, or property located within42
a revenue allocation area created by a local governing body that43
has responsibility for the maintenance of roads or highways, the44
allocation of taxes shall be governed by subparagraph (ii) of this45
paragraph. In any case, the highway district and the urban renewal46
agency may enter into an agreement for a different allocation.47
A copy of any such agreement shall be submitted to the state tax48
commission and to the county clerk by the highway district as soon49
as practicable after the parties have entered into the contract50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


16


and by no later than September 1 of the year in which the agreement1
takes effect.; and2
(v) In the case of a revenue allocation area first established,3
or expanded to include the property, on or after July 1, 2024, all4
taxes levied by the taxing district, unless the taxing district5
has, by a vote of its governing board, irrevocably approved the6
taxing district's inclusion in the revenue allocation area. In7
the case of a revenue allocation area created or expanded to in-8
clude the property prior to July 1, 2024, the allocation of taxes9
shall be governed by subparagraphs (ii) and (iv) of this para-10
graph.11


(b) To the urban renewal agency shall be allocated the balance, if any,12
of the taxes levied on the taxable property located within the revenue13
allocation area.14
(3) Upon enactment of an ordinance adopting a revenue allocation fi-15


nancing provision as part of an urban renewal plan, the urban renewal agency16
shall create a special fund or funds to be used for the purposes enumerated17
in this chapter. The revenues allocated to the urban renewal agency pursuant18
to this chapter shall be paid to the agency by the treasurer of the county in19
which the revenue allocation district is located and shall be deposited by20
the agency into one (1) or more of such special funds. The agency may, in ad-21
dition, deposit into such special fund or funds such other income, proceeds,22
revenues and funds it may receive from sources other than the revenues allo-23
cated to it under subsection (2)(b) of this section.24


(4) For the purposes of section 63-803, Idaho Code, during the period25
when revenue allocation under this chapter is in effect, and solely with26
respect to any taxing district in which a revenue allocation area is located,27
the county commissioners shall, in fixing any tax levy other than a levy28
specified in subsection (1) of this section, take into consideration the29
equalized assessed valuation of the taxable property situated in the revenue30
allocation area as shown in the base assessment roll, rather than the current31
equalized assessed value of such taxable property.32


(5) For all other purposes, including, without limitation, for pur-33
poses of sections 33-802, 33-1002 and 63-1313, Idaho Code, reference in the34
Idaho Code to the term "market value for assessment purposes" (or any other35
such similar term) shall mean market value for assessment purposes as de-36
fined in section 63-208, Idaho Code.37


SECTION 7. That Title 50, Idaho Code, be, and the same is hereby amended38
by the addition thereto of a NEW CHAPTER, to be known and designated as Chap-39
ter 32, Title 50, Idaho Code, and to read as follows:40


CHAPTER 3241
LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ACT42


50-3201. FINDINGS AND PURPOSE. (1) This chapter shall be known and43
cited as the "Local Infrastructure Development District Act."44


(2) It is hereby found and declared that there exists in cities and45
counties a need to raise revenue to finance new commercial and industrial46
development in the state of Idaho.47


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


17


(3) The purpose of this chapter is:1
(a) To encourage the funding and construction of necessary infrastruc-2
ture in advance of actual commercial or industrial developmental growth3
that creates the need for such additional infrastructure;4
(b) To provide a means for the advance payment of development impact5
fees established in chapter 82, title 67, Idaho Code, and the commercial6
or industrial infrastructure that may be financed thereby; and7
(c) To create additional financial tools and financing mechanisms that8
allow new commercial and industrial growth to more expediently pay for9
itself.10
(4) Only the following commercial or industrial infrastructure may be11


financed pursuant to this chapter:12
(a) Infrastructure to be publicly owned or controlled through an ease-13
ment by this state or a political subdivision thereof;14
(b) Infrastructure to be owned by an entity regulated by the Idaho pub-15
lic utilities commission; or16
(c) Cable, broadband, and telecommunications infrastructure.17
(5) A local infrastructure development district may only be formed18


pursuant to this chapter by a city in the city's incorporated area, or by a19
county outside of a city's incorporated area.20


(6) A local infrastructure development district may be formed only af-21
ter:22


(a) Prior review and approval by the governing body of each county or23
city in which the district is proposed to be located of a petition re-24
questing the formation of the district; and25
(b) The necessary approvals for site development under the local land26
use planning act, chapter 65, title 67, Idaho Code, and the planning27
and zoning ordinances of each county and city in which the district is28
proposed to be located have been obtained; provided however, that where29
there will be phased development, approvals obtained for the first30
phase of site development shall be sufficient for the initial creation31
and organization of the district. The formation of a district pursuant32
to this chapter shall not prevent the exercise by a county, city, or33
other political subdivision of any of its powers on the same basis as on34
all other land within its jurisdiction. Notwithstanding the formation35
of a district, the development of real property located within the dis-36
trict shall remain subject to the provisions of chapter 65, title 67,37
Idaho Code, and the applicable planning and zoning ordinances of the38
counties and cities in which the district is located. The formation of a39
district pursuant to this chapter shall not prevent the subsequent es-40
tablishment of other districts or the improvement or assessment of land41
within the district by a county, city, or other political subdivision.42


50-3202. DEFINITIONS. As used in this chapter:43
(1) "Assessment area" means real property within the boundaries of a44


local infrastructure development district that is the subject of a specific45
special assessment as set forth in this chapter.46


(2)(a) "Infrastructure" means improvements that have a substantial47
nexus to the district and directly or indirectly benefit the district,48
including but not limited to:49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


18


(i) Water supply production, treatment, storage and distribution1
facilities;2
(ii) Wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal facilities;3
(iii) Roads, streets and bridges, including rights-of-way, traf-4
fic signals, landscaping, and any local components of state or5
federal highways;6
(iv) Stormwater collection, retention, detention, treatment and7
disposal facilities, flood control facilities, and bank and shore8
protection and enhancement improvements;9
(v) Public parking facilities, including all areas for vehicular10
use for travel, ingress, egress, and parking;11
(vi) Public safety facilities;12
(vii) Acquiring interests in real property for commercial or in-13
dustrial infrastructure; and14
(viii) Electrical, gas, cable, broadband, and telecommunica-15
tions.16


(b) Infrastructure also includes costs associated with planning, de-17
sign, engineering, construction, acquisition. or installation of such18
infrastructure, including the costs of applications, financing, impact19
fees and other fees, permits, and approvals related to the construc-20
tion, acquisition, or installation of such infrastructure, and incur-21
ring expenses incident to and reasonably necessary to carry out the pur-22
poses of this chapter.23
(3) "Infrastructure segment" means a separate or a discernible portion24


of a construction contract attributable to commercial or industrial infra-25
structure.26


(4) "Debt service" means the principal of, interest on and premium, if27
any, on the bonds when due, whether at maturity or prior redemption, and fees28
and costs of registrars, trustees, paying agents. or other agents necessary29
to handle the bonds and the costs of credit enhancement or liquidity support.30


(5) "District" means a local infrastructure development district31
formed pursuant to this chapter. A district shall not exclude from the dis-32
trict any land that is completely surrounded by property in the district. A33
district shall only include contiguous property at the time of formation.34
Land that is connected by only a shoestring or strip of land that comprises a35
railroad or highway right-of-way shall not be considered contiguous for the36
purposes of this chapter. Subsequent to a district's formation, a district37
may include non contiguous property but only if specifically determined by38
the district board to have a substantial nexus to the initial district or to39
the infrastructure contemplated by the initial district and then authorized40
by the district board in its discretion and pursuant to section 50-3206,41
Idaho Code. Land within the district shall only be developed for industrial42
or commercial, non residential purposes.43


(6) "District board" means the board of directors of the district.44
(7) "District development agreement" means an agreement between a45


property owner or developer, the county or city, any other political subdi-46
vision of the state, or the district. A district development agreement shall47
be used to establish obligations of the parties to the agreement relating48
to district financing and development, including intergovernmental agree-49
ments; the ultimate public ownership of the infrastructure financed by the50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


19


district; the understanding of the parties with regard to future annexations1
of property into the district; the total amount of bonds to be issued by the2
district and the property taxes and special assessments to be levied and3
imposed to repay the bonds and the provisions regarding the disbursement of4
bond proceeds; the financial assurances, if any, to be provided with respect5
to the bonds; impact and other fees imposed by governmental authorities,6
including credit, prepayment, or reimbursement with respect thereto; and7
other matters relating to the infrastructure, such as construction, acqui-8
sition, planning, design, inspection, ownership, and control. A district9
development agreement shall be in addition to and shall not supplant any de-10
velopment agreement entered into pursuant to section 67-6511A, Idaho Code,11
pursuant to which a governing body may require or permit as a condition of12
rezoning that an owner or developer make a written commitment concerning the13
use or development of the subject parcel.14


(8) "General plan" means the general plan described in section15
50-3203(1), Idaho Code, as the plan may be amended from time to time.16


(9) "Governing body" means the county commissioners or city council17
that by law is constituted as the governing body of the county or city in18
which the district is located. Reference in this chapter to "governing body19
or bodies" shall mean the governing body or bodies of each county and city in20
which the district is located.21


(10) "Owner" means the person listed as the owner of real property22
within the district or a proposed district on the current property rolls in23
effect at the time that the action, proceeding, hearing, or election has24
begun; provided however, that if a person listed on the property rolls is no25
longer the owner of real property within the district or a proposed district26
and the name of the successor owner becomes known and is verified by recorded27
deed or other similar evidence of transfer of ownership, the successor owner28
shall be deemed to be the owner for the purposes of this chapter.29


(11) "Market value for assessment purposes" means the amount of the30
last preceding equalized assessment of all taxable property and excludes31
all property exempt from taxation pursuant to section 63-602G, Idaho Code,32
within the local infrastructure development district on the tax rolls33
completed and available as of the date of approval in the district bond is-34
suance.35


(12) "Owner qualified elector" means an owner or the designee of the36
owner of real property within the district or proposed district who is qual-37
ified to vote in Idaho. The owner qualified elector must be recorded with38
the county clerk or clerks in the county or counties the district or proposed39
district is located.40


(13) "Person" means any entity, individual, corporation, partnership,41
firm, association, limited liability company, limited liability partner-42
ship, trust, or other such entities as recognized by the state of Idaho.43


(14) "Qualified elector" means a person who possesses all of the quali-44
fications required of electors under the general laws of the state of Idaho45
and:46


(a) Resides within the boundaries of a district or a proposed district47
and who is a qualified elector. For purposes of this chapter, such elec-48
tor shall also be known as a "resident qualified elector"; or49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


20


(b) Is an owner or the designee of the owner of real property that is1
located within the district or a proposed district who is not a resi-2
dent qualified elector as set forth above. For purposes of this chap-3
ter, such elector shall also be known as an "owner qualified elector."4
(15) "Special assessment" means an assessment imposed upon real prop-5


erty located within an assessment area for a specific purpose and of a6
special benefit to the affected property that may be apportioned accord-7
ing to the direct or indirect special benefits conferred upon the affected8
property, as well as any, or any combination of, the following: acreage,9
square footage, front footage, the cost of providing infrastructure for10
the affected property, or any other reasonable method as determined by the11
district board.12


50-3203. CREATION OF DISTRICT. (1) The process for the creation and13
organization of a local infrastructure development district shall be ini-14
tiated by a petition signed by all of the owners of all the lands located in15
the proposed district. The petition shall be filed with the clerk of the16
governing body in which the proposed district will be located. If the pro-17
posed district will be located within two (2) or more counties or cities, a18
petition conforming to the requirements of this section shall be filed with19
the clerk of each jurisdiction's governing body. The petition shall state20
the name of the proposed district and the purpose for which it is formed,21
state that the formation of the district shall entitle the district to impose22
special assessments, levy property taxes and impose fees or charges to pay23
the cost of providing services, and shall be accompanied by a map depicting24
the boundaries of the proposed district, a legal description of the proposed25
district and a copy of the proposed general plan. The general plan shall26
describe or identify the infrastructure to be financed by the district, the27
locations of the infrastructure and the estimated cost thereof, the proposed28
financing methods and the anticipated special assessments, tax levies or29
other charges, the approvals obtained pursuant to section 50-3201(6), Idaho30
Code, and may include possible alternatives, modifications, or substitu-31
tions concerning locations, improvements, financing methods, and other32
information provided in the general plan. The petition shall also include33
copies of any proposed district development agreement. The petition, to-34
gether with all maps and other papers filed therewith, shall be open to35
public inspection in the office of the clerk in each county or city in which36
the petition is filed during such business hours as the clerk may direct.37


(2) Upon the filing of a petition, the governing body shall set a pub-38
lic hearing on the petition, subject to the requirements of chapter 2, ti-39
tle 74, Idaho Code, which hearing shall be at a regular or special meeting40
held within not less than thirty (30) days nor more than ninety (90) days af-41
ter the date of the filing of the petition. If the district will be located42
within two (2) or more counties or cities, the governing bodies of such coun-43
ties or cities shall coordinate their efforts and shall either hold such a44
public hearing in each county or city in which the proposed district will be45
located, or hold a single public meeting in such county or city as the govern-46
ing bodies shall unanimously agree. After hearing and considering any and47
all of the testimony given, the governing body shall thereupon approve a res-48
olution either denying the petition or granting the same and, if granting the49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


21


same, shall fix and describe in the resolution the boundaries of the proposed1
district and order the formation of the same. A resolution granting the pe-2
tition may also include the approval of any district development agreement3
that has been approved by the governing body in the process of considering4
and approving the formation of the district. The boards of county commis-5
sioners or the city councils, as such governing bodies, are hereby specifi-6
cally authorized to act in a joint manner for such purposes.7


(3) Whenever a petition is filed as provided in this section, the pe-8
titioner or petitioners shall deposit with each governing body a sum suffi-9
cient to defray the costs of publication and mailing of notice of the public10
hearing. In the event the district is formed, the petitioner or petitioners11
shall be entitled to be reimbursed such sum from the district, as a district12
formation cost related to the infrastructure, from the district when moneys13
are available to the district. The amount required to be paid under this sub-14
section shall be determined by each governing body and deposited before pub-15
lication of the notice.16


(4) The governing body may charge the petitioner or petitioners a rea-17
sonable fee for the governing body to retain outside advisors to assist the18
governing body in its consideration of the formation of the district. In the19
event the district is formed, the petitioner or petitioners shall be enti-20
tled to be reimbursed such fee from the district, as a district formation21
cost related to the infrastructure, when moneys are available to the dis-22
trict.23


50-3204. DISTRICT ORGANIZATION. (1) If the petition for formation of24
the district is granted by resolution, the district shall comply with the25
filing and recording requirements of section 63-215, Idaho Code, and shall26
also cause a copy of the applicable resolution to be delivered to the county27
assessor of each county in which the district is located, cause a copy of the28
applicable resolution to be recorded with the county clerk in each county in29
which the district is located, and cause a copy of the applicable resolution30
to be filed with the state tax commission.31


(2) Members of the governing body or bodies at the time of formation32
shall serve as the district board.33


(a) If the district is located entirely within the boundaries of a city,34
three (3) members of the city council chosen by the city council shall35
serve as the district board.36
(b) If the district is located entirely within the boundaries of a37
county and outside the boundaries of any city, the county commissioners38
of the county in which the district is located shall serve as the dis-39
trict board.40
(c) If the district is located within the jurisdiction of more than one41
(1) governing body, two (2) members of each governing body shall be ap-42
pointed by that governing body to serve on the district board and, in ad-43
dition, the governing body within whose jurisdiction the largest land44
area of the district is located shall appoint another member from its45
governing body to serve as an additional member of the district board so46
that the district board will always be comprised of an odd number of mem-47
bers. For purposes of determining which jurisdiction has such largest48
land area, the land area in the district that is within the incorporated49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


22


city limits shall be considered as being the land area of the city and1
shall not be considered as part of the land area of the county in which2
the city is located.3
(d) If an area is added to the district pursuant to section 50-3206(2),4
Idaho Code, and such area is located in a city or county not already rep-5
resented on the district board, or if the addition of such area changes6
the jurisdiction in which the largest land area of the district is lo-7
cated, the membership of the district board, at the time of addition of8
such area, shall be adjusted in conformity with the foregoing.9
(e) If an area is deleted from the district pursuant to section10
50-3206(1), Idaho Code, and, as a result, a county or city no longer has11
area within the district, or such deletion changes the jurisdiction in12
which the largest land area of the district is located, the membership13
of the district board, at the time of deletion of such area, shall be14
adjusted in conformity with the foregoing.15
(f) If an area is annexed or deannexed by a city and, as a result, the16
jurisdiction of a county or city is changed, the membership of the dis-17
trict board at the time of such annexation or deannexation shall be ad-18
justed in conformity with the foregoing.19
(3) Within thirty (30) days after the date of the resolution ordering20


formation of the district, and annually thereafter, the district board shall21
meet and elect a chairman and vice chairman to act as the officers of the22
district board. The district board shall, unless otherwise agreed to by a23
majority of the board, meet in the county or city within which the largest24
land area of the district is located. The district shall keep the following25
records, which shall be open to public inspection:26


(a) Minutes of all meetings of the district board;27
(b) All resolutions;28
(c) Accounts showing all moneys received and disbursed;29
(d) The annual budget; and30
(e) All other records required to be maintained by law.31
(4) The district manager shall be a governing body department or an32


individual designated by the district board to administer the district,33
including an independent third party designated by the district board to34
administer the district in conformance with the administrative procedures35
provided in this chapter. The district treasurer shall be the treasurer of a36
governing body or an individual designated by the district board, the dis-37
trict clerk shall be the district clerk of a governing body or an individual38
designated by the district board.39


(5) The district manager shall have charge and supervision of the daily40
operations of the district. The district manager may hire or otherwise em-41
ploy and terminate the employment of such persons, including professional,42
supervisory, and clerical employees, as may be necessary and authorized by43
the board.44


(6) The treasurer of the district shall have such duties as the district45
board may prescribe, together with the duty to keep account with the dis-46
trict, to place to the credit of the district all moneys received by him from47
the collection of special assessments or taxes or from any other sources, and48
all other moneys belonging to the district, and to pay over all moneys be-49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


23


longing to the district on legally drawn warrants or orders of the district1
board.2


(7) The clerk of the district shall have such duties as the district3
board may prescribe, together with the duty to conduct district elections4
and to distribute legal notices.5


(8) The district shall be separate and apart from any county or city.6
The members of the district board, when serving in their official capacity as7
members of the district board, shall act on behalf of the district and not as8
members of a board of county commissioners or as members of a city council.9


(9) The district board shall administer in a reasonable manner the im-10
plementation of the general plan.11


(10) The district shall exist until dissolved pursuant to section12
50-3216, Idaho Code.13


50-3205. DISTRICT POWERS. (1) A district formed pursuant to the provi-14
sions of this chapter, although a political subdivision of this state, is not15
a governmental entity of general purposes and powers but is a special limited16
purposes district with powers only as permitted under this chapter, which17
powers include the power to finance infrastructure consistent with the gen-18
eral plan and, in implementing the general plan, to:19


(a) Enter into contracts and expend moneys for any infrastructure pur-20
poses or district operations;21
(b) Enter into intergovernmental agreements as provided for in sec-22
tions 67-2326 through 67-2333, Idaho Code;23
(c) Enter into district development agreements;24
(d) Acquire interests in real property and personal property for infra-25
structure, within or without the district, and sell, dedicate, lease,26
or otherwise dispose of district property if the sale, dedication,27
lease, or conveyance is not a violation of the terms of any contract or28
bond covenant of the district, and any sale of district property is con-29
ducted under the laws for disposing of local taxing district property;30
(e) Plan, design, engineer, acquire, construct, and install infra-31
structure, including acquiring, converting, renovating, or improving32
existing facilities;33
(f) Employ and establish and pay compensation for staff, counsel, and34
consultants;35
(g) Reimburse a county, city, or other political subdivision of this36
state for staff and consultant services supplied by the county, city, or37
other political subdivision;38
(h) Accept gifts or grants and incur and repay loans for any infrastruc-39
ture;40
(i) Enter into agreements with owners concerning the advance of money41
by owners for infrastructure or the granting of real property by the42
owners for infrastructure;43
(j) Establish, impose, and collect or cause to be collected special44
assessments on real property located within an assessment area of the45
district and, in conjunction with the imposition of such assessments,46
set and collect or cause to be collected administrative fees for infra-47
structure;48


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


24


(k) Levy property taxes on real property located within the district1
and, in conjunction with the levy of such taxes, set and collect or cause2
to be collected administrative fees for infrastructure;3
(l) Incur expenses of the district incident to and reasonably necessary4
to implement the general plan, and pay the same, including the finan-5
cial, legal, and administrative costs of the district;6
(m) Borrow money and incur indebtedness and evidence the same by cer-7
tificates, notes, bonds, or debentures and enter into contracts, agree-8
ments, and trust indentures to obtain credit enhancement or liquidity9
support for its bonds and process the issuance, registration, transfer,10
and payment of its bonds and the disbursement and investment of proceeds11
of its bonds;12
(n) Use public easements and rights-of-way in or across public prop-13
erty, roadways, highways, streets, or other thoroughfares and other14
public easements and rights-of-way, whether in or out of the geographi-15
cal limits of the district, county, or city; and16
(o) Sue and be sued and prosecute and defend, at law or in equity.17
(2) Infrastructure other than personalty, cable, broadband, and18


telecommunications may be located only in or on lands, easements, or19
rights-of-way either publicly owned by this state or a political subdivision20
thereof or owned by an entity regulated by the Idaho public utilities com-21
mission.22


(3) An agreement pursuant to subsection (1) of this section may include23
agreements to repay all or part of such advances, fees, and charges from the24
proceeds of bonds if issued, or from advances, fees, and charges collected25
from other owners or users or those having a right to use any infrastructure.26
A person does not have authority to compel the issuance or sale of the bonds27
of the district or the exercise of any taxing power of the district to make28
repayment under any agreement.29


(4) With respect to goods, services, or construction to be paid for or30
financed pursuant to this chapter, the district, as a political subdivision31
of this state, shall comply with all applicable procurement statutes of this32
state, including section 67-2320, Idaho Code, and chapter 28, title 67,33
Idaho Code.34


50-3206. CHANGE IN DISTRICT BOUNDARIES -- AMEND GENERAL PLAN. (1) Af-35
ter district formation, an area may be deleted from the district only fol-36
lowing notice and hearing in the manner prescribed for the formation hear-37
ing, adoption of a resolution of intention to do so by the district board,38
and a petition signed by all of the owners of land within the district. Lands39
within the district that are subject to the lien of property taxes, special40
assessments, or other charges imposed pursuant to this chapter shall not be41
deleted from the district while there are bonds outstanding that are payable42
by such taxes, assessments, or charges.43


(2) After district formation, an area may be added to the district upon44
adoption of a resolution of intention to do so by the district board and the45
approvals of all the owners of the lands to be added and the governing body of46
each county or city within which such lands are located, subject to notice,47
hearing, and adoption of a resolution in the manner as required for the for-48
mation of a district.49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


25


(3) If an area is deleted or added under subsection (1) or (2) of this1
section, the district board shall attend to the recording and filing re-2
quirements set forth in section 63-215, Idaho Code, and shall also cause a3
copy of the applicable resolution to be delivered to the county assessor of4
each county in which the district is located, cause a copy of the applicable5
resolution to be recorded with the county clerk in each county in which the6
district is located, and cause a copy of the applicable resolution to be7
filed with the state tax commission.8


(4) The district board, following notice and hearing in the manner pre-9
scribed for the formation hearing, may amend the general plan in any manner10
that it determines will not substantially reduce the benefits to be received11
by any land within the district from the infrastructure upon completion of12
the work to be performed under the general plan.13


50-3207. FINANCES. (1) Only the following commercial or industrial14
infrastructure may be financed pursuant to this chapter:15


(a) Infrastructure to be publicly owned or controlled through an ease-16
ment by this state or a political subdivision thereof;17
(b) Infrastructure to be owned by an entity regulated by the Idaho pub-18
lic utilities commission; or19
(c) Cable, broadband, and telecommunications infrastructure.20
(2) Infrastructure to be financed or acquired, or publicly or privately21


constructed pursuant to this chapter shall be subject to the required bid-22
ding procedures for any Idaho public agency.23


(3) Infrastructure shown in the general plan may be financed from the24
following sources of revenue:25


(a) Proceeds received from the sale of bonds of the district;26
(b) Moneys of a county or city contributed to the district;27
(c) Property taxes or special assessments;28
(d) State or federal grants or contributions;29
(e) Private contributions;30
(f) User, landowner, and other fees and charges;31
(g) Proceeds of loans or advances; and32
(h) Any other moneys available to the district by law.33
(4) The amount of indebtedness evidenced by general obligation bonds34


issued pursuant to section 50-3208, Idaho Code, special assessment bonds is-35
sued pursuant to section 50-3209, Idaho Code, and revenue bonds issued pur-36
suant to section 50-3210, Idaho Code, shall not exceed the estimated cost of37
the infrastructure to be financed with such bonds, plus all costs connected38
with the issuance and sale of such bonds, including formation costs, credit39
enhancement, and liquidity support fees and costs. The total aggregate out-40
standing principal amount of general obligation bonds and other indebted-41
ness for which the full faith and credit of the district are pledged shall not42
affect the general obligation bonding capacity of any county or city in which43
the district is located.44


(5) Bonds issued by a district shall not be a general obligation of this45
state or any political subdivision thereof, including any county or city in46
which the district is located and shall not pledge the full faith and credit47
of this state or any political subdivision thereof, including any county or48
city in which the district is located.49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


26


50-3208. GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS -- ELECTION -- MAXIMUM INDEBTEDNESS1
ALLOWED -- LEVY. (1) After district formation, whenever the district board2
shall deem it advisable to issue general obligation bonds of the district,3
upon receipt of a petition signed by all of the owners of land within the dis-4
trict, the district board shall provide therefor by resolution, which res-5
olution shall specify and set forth the infrastructure and other costs and6
expenses approved by the district board consistent with the general plan to7
be financed with the bonds, and make provision for the collection of an an-8
nual tax sufficient to pay the interest on the bonds as it falls due, and also9
to constitute a sinking fund for the payment of the principal thereof as re-10
quired by the constitution and laws of the state of Idaho.11


(2) The resolution shall also provide for holding an election, held12
in compliance with section 50-3212, Idaho Code, to submit to the qualified13
electors of the district the question of authorizing the district to issue14
general obligation bonds of the district to provide money for said infra-15
structure consistent with the general plan. The ballot used in such election16
shall be in form substantially as follows: "In favor of issuing bonds to the17
amount of ... dollars for the purpose stated in Resolution No... .," and18
"Against issuing bonds to the amount of ... dollars for the purpose stated19
in Resolution No... .".20


(3) If two-thirds (2/3) of the qualified electors at such election21
assent to the issuing of the bonds and the incurring of the indebtedness22
thereby created for the purpose aforesaid, the district board shall there-23
upon be authorized to issue and create such indebtedness in the manner and24
for the purposes specified in said resolution, and the bonds shall be issued25
and sold in the manner provided by the laws of the state of Idaho, and the26
district board by further resolution shall be entitled to issue and sell the27
bonds in series or divisions up to the authorized amount without the further28
vote of the qualified electors, and to issue and sell such bonds at such times29
and in such amounts as the district board deems appropriate to carry out an30
infrastructure project or projects in phases; provided however, that before31
any issuance of the bonds, including issuance in series or divisions and, in32
addition to such other determinations made by the district board as it may33
deem reasonable and prudent, the district board shall also determine whether34
reasonable financial assurance for the payment of the debt service on the35
bonds through additional collateral, payment guarantee, or otherwise shall36
be required from a developer. The developer shall be consulted and shall be37
given a reasonable period of time within which to appear, either in person or38
in writing, and respond to any proposed financial assurance. If, following39
such developer's response, the district board determines that reasonable40
financial assurance shall be required, the district board shall specify the41
type and amount of the financial assurance required in its resolution.42


(4) Upon approval of the resolution as provided in subsection (3) of43
this section, the district board shall thereupon be authorized to issue and44
create such indebtedness in the manner and for the purposes specified in said45
resolution, and the bonds shall be issued and sold in the manner provided by46
the laws of the state of Idaho, and the district board by further resolution47
shall be entitled to issue and sell the bonds in series or divisions up to the48
authorized amount without the further vote of the qualified electors, and to49
issue and sell such bonds at such times and in such amounts as the district50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


27


board deems appropriate to carry out an infrastructure project or projects1
in phases; provided however, that before any issuance of the bonds, includ-2
ing issuance in series or divisions and, in addition to such other determi-3
nations made by the district board as it may deem reasonable and prudent, the4
district board shall also determine whether reasonable financial assurance5
for the payment of the debt service on the bonds through additional collat-6
eral, payment guarantee, or otherwise shall be required from a developer.7
The developer shall be consulted and shall be given a reasonable period of8
time within which to appear, either in person or in writing, and respond to9
any proposed financial assurance. If, following such developer's response,10
the district board determines that reasonable financial assurance shall be11
required, the district board shall specify the type and amount of the finan-12
cial assurance required in its resolution.13


(5) After the bonds are issued, the district shall enter in its minutes14
a record of the bonds sold and their number and dates and shall periodically15
collect the pledged revenues to pay the debt service on the bonds when due.16


(6) Bond proceeds received by the district shall be held in a segregated17
account and shall be disbursed from the account only for:18


(a) The payment of infrastructure or infrastructure segments approved19
by the district board and actually completed;20
(b) The purpose of reimbursing actually paid expenditures relating to21
infrastructure as approved by the district board; provided however,22
that lien releases with respect to the payment made must be obtained23
from the underlying providers of labor, work, services, or materials as24
a condition to such payment; or25
(c) The payment or reimbursement of governmentally imposed impact fees26
as approved by the district board.27
(7) Completion of infrastructure may be phased and payment made pur-28


suant to a draw schedule. Bond proceeds shall be expended on the infrastruc-29
ture within three (3) years after issuance. Prior to issuance of the bonds,30
the district board shall determine that such bond proceeds can reasonably be31
expended within that time.32


(8) Each year, prior to the time for the certification required under33
section 50-3214, Idaho Code, the district board may levy a tax upon all tax-34
able real property within the district, sufficient, together with any money35
from the sources described in section 50-3201(3), Idaho Code, to pay debt36
service on the bonds when due. The levy shall be made by resolution entered37
upon the minutes of the district board, and it shall be the duty of the clerk38
of the district, immediately after entry of the resolution in the minutes,39
to transmit to the board of county commissioners in each county in which the40
district is located the certification required under section 50-3214, Idaho41
Code. Such tax levied shall then be collected and accounted for at the time42
and in the form and manner as other taxes are collected and accounted for un-43
der the laws of this state. Moneys derived from the levy of property taxes to44
pay the debt service on the bonds shall be kept separately from other funds of45
the district. A district's levy of property taxes shall constitute a lien on46
all taxable real property within the district.47


(9) The district may issue and sell refunding bonds to refund general48
obligation bonds of the district authorized by this section. The principal49
amount of the refunding bonds may be more or less than the principal amount of50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


28


the bonds being refunded, provided that the proceeds of the refunding bonds1
are used only for refunding purposes and payment of the costs thereof, and2
the total obligation of the district is not increased, that is, if the amount3
of the refunding bonds is more than the principal amount of the bonds being4
refunded, issuance of the refunding bonds will result in a net present value5
savings to the district. No election shall be required in connection with6
the issuance and sale of such refunding bonds.7


50-3209. SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS -- BONDS. (1) After district formation,8
upon the submission of a petition signed by the owners of all the lands lo-9
cated in a proposed assessment area, the district board shall adopt a reso-10
lution ordering that a hearing be held, subject to chapter 2, title 74, Idaho11
Code, to determine whether a special assessment should be imposed and spe-12
cial assessment bonds be issued to provide money for infrastructure consis-13
tent with the general plan and the exercise by the district board of any of14
its powers under section 50-3205, Idaho Code.15


(2) The hearing required by subsection (1) of this section shall be sub-16
ject to the requirements of chapter 2, title 74, Idaho Code.17


(3) If, after the hearing, the district board finds that it will be in18
the best interest of the district and the real property within the assessment19
area that the aggregate fair market value of the real property within the20
assessment area, including the value of the infrastructure to be financed21
or paid for with the special assessments, and the infrastructure for which22
performance bonds or other financial assurances have been received, is at23
least three (3) times the aggregate principal amount of the special as-24
sessment bonds as determined by an appraisal by an appraiser with a member,25
appraisal institute designation, in form and substance acceptable to the26
district board, the district board shall adopt a resolution approving the27
imposition of the special assessment and, also by resolution, shall prepare28
a form of assessment roll numbering each assessment, giving the name, if29
known, of the owner of each lot or parcel of real property assessed, showing30
the amount chargeable to each such lot or parcel, and finding that each such31
lot or parcel is benefited to the amount of assessment imposed thereon. Such32
resolution shall be the final determination of the regularity, validity, and33
correctness of the assessment roll, of each assessment contained therein,34
and of the amount thereof imposed on each such lot or parcel. Special as-35
sessments may be prepaid and permanently satisfied in whole or in part at any36
point in time. Prepayment of special assessments shall be paid in cash to37
the district in the following manner: (i) the interest on such portion to38
the next date special assessment bonds may be redeemed, plus (ii) the unpaid39
principal amount of such portion rounded up to the next highest multiple of40
one thousand dollars ($1,000), plus (iii) any premium due on such redemption41
date with respect to such portion, plus (iv) any administrative or other fees42
charged by the district with respect thereto, less (v) the amount by which43
any reserve fund associated with the special assessment may be reduced on the44
redemption date as a result of such prepayment.45


(4) Special assessment bonds approved at the hearing shall be issued46
in the manner provided by the laws of the state of Idaho, and the district47
board by further resolution shall be entitled to issue and sell the bonds in48
series or divisions up to the authorized amount without further hearing, and49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


29


to issue and sell such bonds at such times and in such amounts as the district1
board deems appropriate to carry out an infrastructure project or projects2
in phases. Bond proceeds shall be expended on the infrastructure within3
three (3) years after issuance. Prior to issuance of the bonds, the district4
board shall determine that such bond proceeds can reasonably be expended5
within such time.6


(5) After the bonds are issued, the district board shall enter in its7
minutes a record of the bonds sold and their numbers and dates and shall pe-8
riodically collect the pledged revenues to pay the debt service on the bonds9
when due.10


(6) Each year, prior to the time for the certification required under11
section 50-3215, Idaho Code, the district board shall impose a special as-12
sessment upon the real property within the assessment area of the district13
that will be subject to the special assessment sufficient, together with any14
moneys from the sources described in section 50-3207(3), Idaho Code, to pay15
debt service on the bonds when due, in addition to reasonable costs associ-16
ated with the collection of the special assessment payments. The special as-17
sessment shall be made by resolution entered upon the minutes of the district18
board, and it shall be the duty of the clerk of the district, immediately af-19
ter entry of the resolution in the minutes, to transmit to the board of county20
commissioners in each county in which the district is located, the certifi-21
cation required under section 50-3214, Idaho Code. Such special assessment22
shall then be collected and accounted for at the time and in the form and man-23
ner as property taxes are collected and accounted for under the laws of this24
state. Moneys derived from the imposition of the special assessment to pay25
the debt service on the bonds shall be kept separately from other moneys of26
the district.27


(7) Special assessments against privately owned property shall be sub-28
ject to the following provisions:29


(a) The maximum amount of any special assessment that may be imposed30
shall not be increased over time by an amount exceeding ten percent31
(10%);32
(b) The special assessment shall be imposed for a specified time pe-33
riod, after which no further special assessment shall be imposed and34
collected; and35
(c) Subject to the applicable laws of this state, nothing in this sub-36
section shall preclude the establishment of different categories of37
industrial or commercial property or changing the amount of the special38
assessment imposed upon a parcel whose size or use is changed. A change39
in the amount of a special assessment imposed upon a parcel due to a40
change in its size or use shall not require notice and hearing, if the41
method for changing the amount of special assessment was approved at the42
hearing approving the special assessment and was described in suffi-43
cient detail to enable the owner of the affected parcel to determine how44
the change in size or use of the parcel would affect the amount of the45
special assessment.46
(8) A district's imposition of a special assessment shall constitute a47


lien on the real property within the assessment area subject to the special48
assessment, including real property acquired by the state or its political49
subdivisions after the imposition of the special assessment, which shall be50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


30


effective during the period in which the special assessment is imposed and1
shall have a priority coequal to the lien of real property taxes. A special2
assessment shall be subject to foreclosure by the district in the same man-3
ner as real property tax liens under the laws of this state, provided that a4
special assessment shall be subject to foreclosure at any time after thirty5
(30) days following written notice of delinquency to the owner of the real6
property to which the delinquency applies. The portion of proceeds of any7
foreclosure sale necessary to discharge the lien for the special assessment8
shall be deposited in the special bond fund for payment of any obligations9
secured thereby.10


(9) No holder of special assessment bonds issued pursuant to this chap-11
ter may compel any exercise of the taxing power of the district, county, or12
city to pay the bonds or the interest on the bonds. Special assessment bonds13
issued pursuant to this chapter are not a debt of the state of Idaho or any po-14
litical subdivision thereof including the district, county, or city, nor is15
the payment of special assessment bonds enforceable out of any moneys other16
than the revenue pledged to the payment of the bonds.17


(10) Subject to the provisions of this section, a district may issue18
special assessment bonds at such times and in such amounts as the district19
deems appropriate to carry out a project or projects in phases, and payment20
may be made pursuant to a draw schedule.21


(11) The district may issue and sell refunding bonds to refund any spe-22
cial assessment bonds of the district authorized in this chapter. The prin-23
cipal amount of the refunding bonds may be more or less than the principal24
amount of the bonds being refunded, provided the proceeds of the refunding25
bonds are used only for refunding purposes and payment of the costs thereof,26
and the total obligation of the district is not increased, that is, if the27
amount of the refunding bonds is more than the principal amount of the bonds28
being refunded, issuance of the refunding bonds will result in a net present29
value savings to the district.30


50-3210. REVENUE BONDS -- ELECTION. (1) Subject to section 3, article31
VIII, of the constitution of the state of Idaho, after district formation,32
whenever the district board shall deem it advisable to issue revenue bonds33
of the district, upon receipt of a petition signed by all of the owners of34
land within the district, the district board shall provide therefor by reso-35
lution, which resolution shall specify and set forth the infrastructure con-36
sistent with the general plan to be financed with such bonds and the types of37
usage fees to be imposed.38


(2) The resolution shall also provide for holding an election, held39
in compliance with section 50-3212, Idaho Code, to submit to the qualified40
electors of the district the question of authorizing the district to issue41
revenue bonds of the district to provide moneys for such infrastructure con-42
sistent with the general plan.43


(3) Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this section, the44
provisions of the water and sewer district revenue bond act codified in45
chapter 41, title 42, Idaho Code, shall apply with respect to the issuance46
of revenue bonds and refunding bonds under this section in substantially the47
same manner as if the district were a water or sewer district issuing bonds48
pursuant to the water and sewer district revenue bond act, and the district49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


31


board shall conduct itself in the issuance of revenue bonds in substantially1
the same manner as the commissioners of a district under the water and sewer2
district revenue bond act.3


(4) If the revenue bonds are approved at the election, the district4
board shall thereupon be authorized to issue and create such indebtedness in5
the manner and for the purposes specified in said resolution, and such bonds6
shall be issued and sold in the manner provided by the laws of the state of7
Idaho.8


(5) After the bonds are issued, the district board shall enter in its9
minutes a record of the bonds sold and their numbers and dates and shall pe-10
riodically collect the pledged revenues to pay the debt service on the bonds11
when due.12


(6) Money derived from the collection of revenues pledged to pay the13
debt service on the bonds shall be kept separately from other moneys of the14
district.15


(7) No holder of revenue bonds issued pursuant to this chapter may com-16
pel any exercise of the taxing power of the district, county, or city to pay17
the bonds or the interest on the bonds. Revenue bonds issued pursuant to this18
chapter are not a debt of the state or any political subdivision thereof, in-19
cluding any county or city in which the district is located, nor are they the20
debt of the district, other than with respect to the revenue pledged to the21
payment of the bonds. The payment of revenue bonds is not enforceable out of22
any money other than the revenue pledged to the payment of the bonds.23


(8) Subject to the provisions of this section, a district may issue rev-24
enue bonds at such times and in such amounts as the district deems appropri-25
ate to carry out a project in phases.26


(9) The district may issue and sell refunding bonds to refund revenue27
bonds of the district authorized by this section. The principal amount of28
the refunding bonds may be more or less than the principal amount of the bonds29
being refunded, provided the proceeds of the refunding bonds are used only30
for refunding purposes and payment of the costs thereof, and the total obli-31
gation of the district is not increased, that is, if the amount of the refund-32
ing bonds is more than the principal amount of the bonds being refunded, is-33
suance of the refunding bonds will result in a net present value savings to34
the district. No election shall be required in connection with the issuance35
and sale of such refunding bonds.36


50-3211. TERMS OF BONDS. For any bonds issued pursuant to this chap-37
ter, the district board shall prescribe the denominations of the bonds,38
the principal amount of each issue and the form of the bonds and shall es-39
tablish the maturities, which shall not exceed thirty (30) years, interest40
payment dates and interest rates, whether fixed or variable, not exceeding41
the maximum rate stated in the notice of the election or the resolution of42
the district board. The bonds, up to the aggregate authorized principal43
amount thereof, may be issued in whole or divided into series, and by sup-44
plementary resolution adopted from time to time by the district board, the45
district may issue any remaining principal amount of the bonds in one (1) or46
more subsequent divisions. No election shall be required in connection with47
the issuance of any remaining principal amount of the bonds in a subsequent48
division. The bonds may be sold by competitive bid or negotiated sale for49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


32


public or private offering at, below, or above par. The proceeds of the bonds1
shall be deposited with the treasurer, or with a trustee or agent designated2
by the district board, to the credit of the district to be withdrawn for the3
purposes provided by this chapter. Pending such use, the proceeds may be in-4
vested as determined by the district board. The bonds shall be made payable5
as to both principal and interest solely from revenues of the district, and6
shall specify the revenues pledged for such purposes, and shall contain such7
other terms, conditions, covenants, and agreements as the district board8
deems proper. The bonds may be payable from any combination of taxes or9
revenues of the types described in sections 50-3208, 50-3209, and 50-3210,10
Idaho Code.11


50-3212. NOTICE AND CONDUCT OR ELECTION. (1) Any election held pur-12
suant to the provisions of this chapter shall be a nonpartisan election, and13
in regard to election dates, shall be held in compliance with section 34-10614
or 50-405, Idaho Code. Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this15
section, the district board shall cause the election to be held and conducted16
in the same manner prescribed by law for the holding of general elections in17
this state, including chapter 14, title 34, Idaho Code, and shall call the18
election by posting notices in three (3) public places within the boundaries19
of the district not less than thirty (30) days before the election. Notice20
shall also be published twice, the first time not less than twelve (12) days21
prior to the election and the second time not less than five (5) days prior to22
the election, in a newspaper of general circulation in each county or city in23
which the proposed district is located. A copy of such notice shall also be24
mailed to each district resident and each owner of real property in the dis-25
trict if known or such owner's agent if known, addressed to such person at his26
post office address if known or, if unknown, to a post office in the county or27
city where the district is located. Ownership of real property shall be de-28
termined as of the date of the adoption of the resolution ordering the hear-29
ing. The notice shall state:30


(a) The place of holding the election;31
(b) Subject to section 34-1409, Idaho Code, the hours during the day in32
which the polls will be open;33
(c) If the election is a bond election, whether the bonds are general34
obligation bonds or revenue bonds, the total principal amount of bonds35
to be authorized, whether the bonds will be issued in series, the maxi-36
mum rate of interest to be paid on the bonds, and the maximum term of the37
bonds, not exceeding thirty (30) years;38
(d) If the election is an election to change or eliminate an existing39
tax, the maximum tax amount to be imposed as a result of the change or40
elimination;41
(e) The purposes for which property taxes levied and revenues raised42
will be used, including a description of the infrastructure to be fi-43
nanced with tax revenues, district revenues, or bond proceeds;44
(f) That the imposition of property taxes will result in a lien for the45
payment thereof on real property within the district; and46
(g) That a general plan is on file with the county clerk of each county47
in which the district is located.48


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


33


(2) The district board shall determine the date of the election and the1
polling place or places for the election. The district board may establish,2
change, and consolidate election precincts within the district as it deems3
necessary and appropriate and shall define precinct boundaries.4


(3) Subject to section 50-3202(10) and (13), Idaho Code, the current5
property rolls for the district and current voter lists in effect at the6
time that the election has begun shall be used to determine the qualified7
electors. If the district includes land lying partly in and partly out of8
any precinct, the voter lists may contain the names of all electors in the9
precinct, and the precinct boards at those precincts shall require that a10
prospective elector execute an affidavit stating that the elector is also a11
qualified elector.12


(4) If the district is to be located within two (2) or more counties or13
cities, the election shall be held on the same day in each jurisdiction.14


(5) The ballot material provided to each voter shall include:15
(a) For an election concerning the issuance of bonds, an impartial de-16
scription of the bonds to be issued and an impartial description of the17
property taxes to be imposed; the method of apportionment, collection18
and enforcement and other details sufficient to enable each qualified19
elector to reasonably estimate the amount of tax he or she will be obli-20
gated to pay; and a statement that the issuance of the bonds and the im-21
position of property taxes is for the provision of certain, but not nec-22
essarily all, infrastructure that may be needed or desirable within the23
district and that other taxes or assessments by other governmental en-24
tities may be presented for approval by qualified electors; and25
(b) For an election to change an existing maximum tax or eliminate an26
existing tax, an impartial description of the change or elimination.27
(6) Within ten (10) days after an election, the district board shall28


meet and canvass the returns and declare the results thereof. At least a29
two-thirds (2/3) majority of the votes cast at the election shall be required30
for issuing bonds or changing an existing tax. The canvass may be continued31
for an additional period not to exceed thirty (30) days at the election of the32
district board for the purpose of completing the canvass. Failure of a re-33
quired majority to vote in favor of the matter submitted shall not prejudice34
the submission of the same or similar matters at a later election. The can-35
vass of any general obligation bond election shall be filed and recorded in36
each county in which the district is located.37


(7) In any election held pursuant to this chapter, every voter may vote38
at any election held pursuant to this chapter but shall be entitled to cast39
votes as follows: (i) each resident qualified elector shall be entitled to40
one (1) vote; and (ii) each owner qualified elector shall be entitled to one41
(1) vote. An owner qualified elector shall not be entitled to an additional42
vote as a result of also being a resident of the district. When record title43
is held in more than one (1) name, the owners shall file with the clerk of the44
district at or prior to the election a designation in writing, of which one45
(1) of the owners shall be deemed the owner for purposes of voting.46


(8) In conducting an election, the polling official may require evi-47
dence of ownership of property and designation of the power to exercise the48
vote of any owner consistent with the provisions of this section and section49
50-3202(10), Idaho Code.50


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


34


50-3213. PETITION SIGNATURES. (1) For the purpose of property owners1
signing petitions pursuant to this chapter, prior to the creation of the dis-2
trict, when record title is held in more than one (1) name, the owners shall3
file with the governing body, prior to signing the petition, a designation in4
writing of which one of the owners shall be deemed the owner for purposes of5
petition signing. After creation of the district, such written designation6
shall be filed with the district.7


(2) For the purpose of property owners signing petitions pursuant to8
this chapter, when record title is held by an entity, corporation, partner-9
ship, firm, association, limited liability company, limited liability part-10
nership, trust, or other entity recognized by the state of Idaho, the chief11
executive official shall be deemed the owner for the purposes of petition12
signing.13


50-3214. COST OF ADMINISTRATION. Each year, prior to the time for14
the certification required under section 50-3214, Idaho Code, the district15
board may levy a tax upon all taxable real property within the district of16
up to one-hundredth of one percent (.01%) of the market value for assessment17
purposes on all taxable real property within the district, to be used only to18
reimburse or defray the administrative expenses of the district pursuant to19
a district development agreement. No election shall be required. The levy20
shall be made by resolution entered upon the minutes of the district board,21
and it shall be the duty of the clerk of the district, immediately after entry22
of the resolution in the minutes, to transmit to the board of county commis-23
sioners in each county in which the district is located, the certification24
required under section 50-3214, Idaho Code. Such tax shall then be collected25
and accounted for at the time and in the form and manner as other taxes are26
collected and accounted for under the laws of this state.27


50-3215. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND ESTIMATES -- ANNUAL BUDGET28
-- CERTIFICATION. (1) When levying property taxes or imposing special as-29
sessments, and prior to certification of same to the county commissioners,30
the district board shall make annual statements and estimates of the admin-31
istrative expenses of the district, the costs of infrastructure to be fi-32
nanced by property taxes and special assessments, and the amount of all other33
expenditures for infrastructure proposed to be paid from property taxes and34
special assessments and of the amount to be raised to pay general obliga-35
tion bonds and special assessment bonds of the district, all of which shall36
be provided for by the levy, imposition and collection of property taxes and37
special assessments. The annual estimates prepared by the district board38
shall include an amount determined by the district board, in consultation39
with the county tax collector, to defray the costs imposed upon the county40
tax collector's office for any additional administrative services that will41
be required in the collection of and accounting for such district property42
taxes and special assessments. Such additional costs shall be for those ser-43
vices not otherwise included in the general tax collection and accounting44
services already provided by the county tax collector's office and other-45
wise paid for by property tax revenues and shall be reasonably related to,46
but shall not exceed, the actual cost of the additional administrative ser-47
vices provided. The district board shall file the annual statements and es-48


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


35


timates with the district clerk and, not later than the time required by sec-1
tion 63-802A, Idaho Code, shall set and notify the county clerk of the date2
and location set for the annual budget hearing of the district. The dis-3
trict board shall publish a notice of the filing of the estimate, shall hold4
a public hearing on the portion of the estimate not relating to debt service5
on general obligation bonds and special assessment bonds and shall adopt a6
budget. Notice of the budget hearing shall be posted at least ten (10) days7
prior to the date of said meeting in at least one (1) conspicuous place within8
the district to be determined by the district board; a copy of the notice9
shall also be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county10
or city in which the proposed district is located, in one (1) issue thereof,11
during such ten (10) day period. The place, hour, and day of the hearing12
shall be specified in such notice as well as the place where the budget may be13
examined prior to the hearing. A full and complete copy of the proposed bud-14
get shall be published with and as a part of the publication of the notice of15
hearing. The budget shall be available for public inspection from and after16
the date of the posting of notices of hearing as provided in this section at17
such place and during such business hours as the district board may direct.18
A quorum of the district board shall attend the hearing and explain the pro-19
posed budget and hear any and all objections to the proposed budget. The dis-20
trict board at the time of the certification required under subsection (2) of21
this section shall file with the board of county commissioners in each county22
in which the district is located a certified copy of the annual budget as pre-23
viously prepared, approved, and adopted.24


(2) The district board, having determined the total amount required25
from property taxes and special assessments to raise the amount of money26
fixed by the annual budget, including the amount of money needed to satisfy27
annual bond payments, shall cause the amount of money so determined to be28
certified in dollars to the board of county commissioners in each county29
in which the district is located no later than the time required for certi-30
fication under section 63-803, Idaho Code. Such certification shall list31
separately each tax levy and special assessment if more than one (1), and the32
purpose of each thereof, and shall otherwise comply with the requirements of33
section 63-803, Idaho Code.34


(3) Following such certification to the county commissioners, district35
property taxes and special assessments shall then be collected and accounted36
for at the time and in the form and manner as other taxes are collected and37
accounted for under the laws of this state. Except as specifically provided38
otherwise in this chapter, all statutes of this state relating to the levy,39
imposition, collection, settlement, and payment of property taxes, includ-40
ing the collection of delinquent taxes and sale of property for nonpayment of41
taxes and special assessments, apply to district property taxes and special42
assessments.43


50-3216. DISSOLUTION OF DISTRICT. (1) The district shall be dissolved44
by the district board by a resolution of the district board upon a determina-45
tion that each of the following conditions exist:46


(a) All infrastructure owned by the district has been, or provision has47
been made for all infrastructure to be conveyed, either to the state48
of Idaho or to a political subdivision thereof, which shall include a49


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


36


county or city in which the district is located, or to a public district1
or other authority authorized by the laws of this state to own such in-2
frastructure;3
(b) The district has no outstanding bond obligations; and4
(c) All obligations of the district pursuant to any contracts or agree-5
ments entered into by the district have been satisfied.6
(2) All property within the district that is subject to the lien of dis-7


trict taxes or special assessments shall remain subject to the lien for the8
payment of general obligation bonds or special assessment bonds, as the case9
may be, notwithstanding dissolution of the district. The district shall not10
be dissolved if any revenue bonds of the district remain outstanding unless11
an amount of money sufficient, together with investment income thereon, to12
make all payments due on the revenue bonds, either at maturity or prior re-13
demption, has been deposited with a trustee or escrow agent and pledged to14
the payment and redemption of the bonds. The district may continue to oper-15
ate after dissolution only as needed to collect money and make payments on16
any outstanding bonds.17


(3) The district shall send a notice of dissolution to the governing18
body or bodies, the county assessor of each county in which the district is19
located, and the state tax commission. The district shall also record a no-20
tice of dissolution with the county clerk in each county in which the dis-21
trict is located.22


(4) Subject to the provisions of this section, if upon dissolution of23
the district, any excess moneys of the district remain, the district board24
shall, by resolution, cause the such moneys to be fairly distributed among25
the current taxpayers of the district. If, as determined in the sole discre-26
tion of the district board, the amount to be distributed is de minimis or the27
administrative cost of distribution is prohibitive, such remaining moneys28
shall be paid to the county treasurer of each county in which the district is29
located to be distributed among the cities and counties in which the district30
is located in proportion to which said cities and counties receive property31
tax revenues generally.32


50-3217. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. Neither any member of the district33
board nor any person acting on behalf of the district, while acting within34
the scope of his authority, shall be subject to any personal liability for35
any action taken or omitted within that scope of authority.36


50-3218. APPEAL -- EXCLUSIVE REMEDY -- CONCLUSIVENESS. Any person in37
interest who feels aggrieved by the final decision of a governing body or a38
district board in the formation or governing of a district, including, with39
respect to any tax levy, special assessment, or bond, may, within sixty (60)40
days after such final decision, seek judicial review by filing a written41
notice of appeal with the clerk of the district and with the clerk of the42
district court for the judicial district in which a majority of the land area43
of the district is located. After the sixty (60) day period has run, no one44
shall have any cause or right of action to contest the legality, formality,45
or regularity of such decision for any reason whatsoever and, thereafter,46
such decision shall be considered valid and uncontestable, and the valid-47
ity, legality, and regularity of any such decision shall be conclusively48


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM







DRAFT
DRRCB238


37


presumed. With regard to the foregoing, if the question of validity of any1
bonds issued pursuant to this chapter is not raised on appeal, the authority2
to issue the bonds, the legality thereof and of the levies or assessments3
necessary to pay the same shall be conclusively presumed, and no court shall4
thereafter have authority to inquire into such matters.5


50-3219. CONSISTENCY WITH STATE LAW. (1) A local infrastructure de-6
velopment district shall develop infrastructure consistent with the general7
plan and in compliance with the requirements of chapter 13, title 50, Idaho8
Code, and chapter 65, title 67, Idaho Code.9


(2) A local infrastructure development district shall be deemed to be10
of the same nature and afforded the same treatment as a local improvement11
district for purposes of application of section 58-336, Idaho Code, relat-12
ing to lands benefitting by such district; section 67-8209, Idaho Code, au-13
thorizing development impact fee credits; and section 67-8214, Idaho Code,14
providing that other powers and rights of governmental entities are not af-15
fected.16


50-3220. SEVERABILITY. The provisions of this chapter are hereby17
declared to be severable and if any provision or the application of the pro-18
vision to any person or circumstance is declared invalid for any reason,19
such declaration shall not affect the validity of remaining portions of this20
chapter.21


SECTION 8. An emergency existing therefor, which emergency is hereby22
declared to exist, this act shall be in full force and effect on and after23
July 1, 2024.24


Saturday February 03, 2024 10:41 AM






Letter from developer/industry to legislators:



Dear __________, 



I have been made aware there is a draft proposed bill, which as drafted, significantly impacts the ability to use urban renewal/revenue allocation financing to support economic development and/or downtown revitalization projects.   The proposed new alternative tool for commercial/industrial projects is not a replacement for urban renewal and tax increment financing.  I have significant concerns with this proposed legislation and would appreciate the opportunity to meet with you.

From a policy perspective, the goals of this legislation are unclear. No group, entity or person who has used the existing Idaho Urban Renewal Law, Local Economic Development Act, or the Community Infrastructure District authority, whether public or private, was invited to participate in the discussions or drafting process, identify whether there is a real issue/policy concern to solve or whether the Local Infrastructure Development District concept is a viable replacement for urban renewal.   

Should this bill move forward as proposed, it will impact the _________ development located _____________ that has been in the planning stages since ___________, which has incorporated and planned on the use of the urban renewal tool.  

At this time, we, in conjunction with the urban renewal agency have commenced the process to establish an urban renewal district to support public infrastructure improvements to enhance [commercial/industrial development, workforce housing _____________]. All projects the community and region need and support.  

We have no viable alternative path forward without the urban renewal tool.

The proposed replacement tool, LIDD, is not a replacement for urban renewal.  The LIDD would add costs to the project on the back-end, and also does not allow for the inclusion of residential, which is a component piece of our mixed-use zoning project that includes commercial and residential.  

A companion community infrastructure district is also not a viable tool as there are limitations on indebtedness and bond proceeds could not be used to assist with certain infrastructure improvements.  

The policy behind the proposed bill is unclear; it appears to be a solution in search of a problem.  





Dear RAI Members,

Attached please find the proposed draft amendments to the urban renewal statutes (previously
circulated), which as drafted, significantly impacts the ability to use urban renewal/revenue
allocation financing to support economic development and/or downtown revitalization projects.
 The draft bill also includes a proposed replacement tool to support economic development projects,
the Local Infrastructure Development District Act (LIDD), which is based off of the community
infrastructure district act (CID).   A summary of the proposed changes and the new LIDD tool is
outlined below.

Please be aware the attached proposal is a draft and may change before the bill is formally
printed.  With that in mind early communications should focus on preservation of the tool,
communication, and analysis of the impact these changes could have on pending projects: 1)
reach out to your legislators and advise them you are aware of a proposal that will significantly
impact urban renewal and request a meeting; 2) reach out to developers and request that they
reach out to legislators again advising them that they are aware of a proposal that will
significantly impact urban renewal, and if the information is available, how the draft changes
impact current projects (and why LIDD/CID will not work as a replacement); and 3) reach out to
non-members in your region and advise them of this proposal and request their engagement on
these issues.

Attached is a draft letter from developers to legislators that can be individualized.  This form can also
be modified to be sent from agencies to legislators.  Communication is critical – legislators need to
be able to stay that they have heard from their constituents.   

General Comments that can be weaved into communications:

No group, entity or person who has used the existing Idaho Urban Renewal Law, Local
Economic Development Act, or the CID authority, whether public or private were invited
around the table to participate in the drafting process, identify whether there is a real
problem to solve or whether the LIDD concept should/could replace Urban Renewal/RAA. 
Information we received indicates the LIDD approach does not work well and would not be
preferable over existing Urban Renewal/RAA. 
The drafting effort completely disregards the fact many, if not all projects would not have
taken place without Urban Renewal/RAA, the “but for” test.
No objection to adopting the LIDD as a standalone bill and seeing how it could be used, but
not a replacement for Urban Renewal/RAA.
No definitive grandfather provision to except out any existing plan.  
LIDD completely untested; no other state to look to for success stories.  UR has a successful
track record in the State.
Question the policy objectives – they are unclear.

Again, as this proposal remains in draft form, it can continue to be revised; however, it is critical that
developers/industry/commercial reach out to stakeholder groups and legislators and urge them to



seek counsel or flat out reject further cuts to the urban renewal tool.

See below for comprehensive outline of proposed changes:

RS DRRCB238

The RS empowers the city or county governing body to dissolve the urban renewal agency at
any time, provided the agency has no outstanding bond debt.

The RS prohibits any bond issued after July 1, 2024 from having a maturity date longer than 20
years. 

Urban renewal areas and revenue allocation areas created after July 1, 2024, or expanded on
or after July 1, 2024, cannot include single family residential properties, agricultural
properties, or undeveloped properties unless previously developed for non-agricultural
purposes.  

No duration or extension of a revenue allocation area can exceed 20 years beyond July 1, 2024,
except for bonds issued to finance a project with a maturity date beyond that date but not
exceeding 20 years, or refinancing of debt that extends beyond 20 years in order to avoid a
default on the bonds. 

The provision requiring taxes to be remitted to highway districts would cover revenue
allocation areas established or expanded to include property on or after July 1, 2020, and prior
to July 1, 2024. 

For revenue allocation areas first established or expanded on or after July 1, 2024, each taxing
district’s governing board must vote to decide whether their increment will be used for urban
renewal.    

For revenue allocation areas created or expanded prior to July 1, 2024, the allocation of taxes
would be governed by subparagraphs (ii) and (iv) of Idaho Code 50-2908(2)(a). 

The bill also would create a new Title 50, Chapter 32, the Local Infrastructure Development
District Act. 

The types of infrastructure financed by this tool include publicly owned or controlled
infrastructure by the state or local governments; infrastructure owned by a public utility; and
cable, broadband, and telecommunications infrastructure.  More specifically, that would
include: water production, treatment, storage and distribution facilities; wastewater
collection, treatment and disposal facilities; roads and bridges, including rights-of-way, traffic
signals, landscaping, and local components of state or federal highways; stormwater



collection, retention, detention, treatment and disposal facilities, flood control facilities, bank
and shore protection and enhancement; public parking facilities; public safety facilities;
acquiring interests in real property for commercial or industrial infrastructure; and electrical,
gas, cable, broadband and telecommunications.

Infrastructure also includes costs of planning, design, engineering, construction, acquisition,
and installation, including costs of applications, financing, impact fees and other fees,
permits and approvals.

Land within the district may only be developed for industrial or commercial, non residential
purposes.

The district would be created by petition signed by all of the owners of all the lands located
within the proposed district. 

The district has the power to levy special assessments which are charged in relation to an
individual property’s benefits from the improvements, as well as levy property taxes, and
impose fees or charges to fund providing services. 

The district would develop a general plan identifying the infrastructure to be financed by the
district, its location, estimated costs, proposed financing methods and revenues to achieve
those projects. 

When a petition has been filed to create a district, the governing body (city council or county
commissioners) must hold a public hearing on the petition.  The governing body has the power
to approve or deny the petition.  The governing body may charge the petitioner a reasonable
fee to cover the costs of consultants or other professionals hired by the city or county to
advise on creating the district.  The petitioner may be reimbursed for those costs if the district
is formed.

If the district is within a city, then 3 members of the city council selected by the city council
serve as the district board; if the district is within the unincorporated parts of the county, the
county commissioners serve as the district board. 

The district board is legally separate from the city or county governing board and the district
board members must act on behalf of the district and not as city councilors or county
commissioners. 

The district manager is a city or county staff person selected to administer and run the district,
hire and fire staff, and retain professionals, as authorized by the board, and could be a
consultant.  The district treasurer is the city or county treasurer, or person designated by the
district board.  The district clerk is the city or county clerk, or person designated by the district
board.



The district has the power to enter into contracts; spend money; enter into intergovernmental
agreements; enter into district development agreements; acquire real and personal property
and sell or convey such property; plan, design, engineer and install infrastructure, including
improving existing facilities; have staff, legal counsel and consultants; reimburse the city or
county for providing staff support for the district; accept gifts or grants; collect special
assessments on real property within the district; levy property taxes on real property within the
district; and borrow money and incur debt.

The district’s bonds are not an obligation of the county or city, and district bonds do not
restrict the city or county’s bonding capacity. 

General obligation bonds repaid with property taxes are issued upon a petition of all the
property owners in the district.   

Special assessment bonds may be issued to fund infrastructure upon submission of a petition
signed by owners of all the lands located within the proposed assessment area.  The aggregate
fair market value of real property within the assessment area, including the value of the
infrastructure to be funded, must be at least three times the aggregate principal amount of the
special assessment bonds, determined by a licensed appraiser. 

Revenue bonds repaid through fees may be issued by the district upon receipt of a petition
from all the property owners requesting that the question be submitted to the voters. 

All bonds—general obligation, revenue and special assessment—must be approved by a two-
thirds majority of qualified electors.  

Qualified electors include both residents of the district and property owners within the
district. 

The term of repayment for bonds may be up to 30 years.

The district is dissolved following a resolution of the district board that all infrastructure has
been conveyed to the state or a local government, the district has no outstanding bonds, and
all obligations of the district pursuant to contracts or agreements have been satisfied. 

Given how politically unpopular Community Infrastructure Districts (CIDs) have been, tying
local governments even more firmly to this tool is begging for trouble.    

CIDs normally cover large, high end residential developments.  It is not clear whether a similar
concept will work as well in a more targeted commercial or industrial area.  The requirement
for all property owners to sign off on forming the Local Infrastructure Development District and
the restrictions to commercial and industrial property mean that the idea that this could be



used to fund public safety facilities, roads and bridges, and wastewater treatment facilities
seems unlikely (there might be exceptions in the case of the largest projects).  It seems like the
district needs a bigger geographic footprint to make those kind of projects viable. 
 
The recent focus of communities with urban renewal agencies has been to get the project
done as quickly as possible and get the increment value back on the tax rolls ASAP.  These
districts aren’t designed to work that quickly, they can issue bonds for up to 30 years.  They will
be around for decades. 
 
Given the fact that finance professionals have probably been left out of the development of
this proposal, there is a strong possibility that they may find that this won’t work.  This is all
conjecture until they start looking at the tool and determine if it is viable. 
 
The changes requiring taxing districts to authorize giving their increment revenue to new
revenue allocation areas mean that urban renewal will face greater challenges. 
 
It’s not clear whether the Local Infrastructure Development District will adequately fulfill the
needs of cities of different populations and characteristics, and whether urban renewal should
be curtailed as swiftly and severely as this proposal envisions.  There are a lot of questions.
 
Line 18, Page 18; Line 29, Page 18; have punctuation errors. 
 



ARTIST CALL FOR APPLICATIONS 
Local Art for Lightboxes 

Deadline to apply: XXXXXX, 2024 

Project Outline 
The City of McCall invites artists to participate in the first phase of the Local Art for 
Lightboxes project. Through this project, vinyl wraps featuring selected artworks by 
regional artists will transform utilitarian streetlight control boxes in downtown McCall 
into public art.  

Submitted artwork should: 
• Contribute to downtown McCall as an inviting place to visit and gather
• Explore the themes relating to “community” or “community-building” (see “Artist

Prompt” below for details)
• Be able to be formatted to fit the dimensions of the streetlight control boxes on

all four vertical sides and top (see attached design template).

Artist Prompt 
Across Idaho, growth and change are spurring conversations on a range of important 
issues, including community, engagement and belonging. Here in McCall, how can 
we use public art to encourage constructive discussions about these timely topics? 
By focusing on the themes of “community” and “community-building,” this project 
challenges artists to reflect on one or more of the following in their artwork:  

• What does “community” mean to you?
• How is community created or nurtured?
• What defines McCall’s community?
• What kind of community should McCall aspire to be?

Site Information 
This phase of the project will install vinyl wraps printed with selected artworks on 
three (3) streetlight control boxes within the Downtown West Urban Renewal Area, 
which roughly includes McCall’s downtown core, and extends south along 3rd Street 
to Stibnite Street and west along Lake Street to Mission Street (see attached map). 
Each selected artist or artist team will be invited to provide artwork for one location.  



Budget 
Each artist/artist team chosen for this opportunity will receive an artist fee of $1,000. 
Funding for the project, including printing and installation costs for the vinyl wraps is 
being provided by the McCall Redevelopment Agency. 

Eligibility 
This public art opportunity is open to artists aged 17 and over and living within 
Idaho’s West Central Mountain region, which covers Valley County and northern 
Adams County, and includes the communities of McCall, Donnelly, Cascade, 
Yellowpine and New Meadows. Submissions may consist of either new artwork 
created specifically for this project or existing, unpublished artwork that satisfies the 
project requirements.  

Selection Process 
A selection committee consisting of representatives from the McCall Public Art 
Advisory Committee, the McCall Redevelopment Agency Board, professional artists 
and the community at large will review all submissions and recommend three (3) 
artists to the McCall City Council for final selection.  

The criteria for selection will include the artistic quality of the submitted work; its 
appropriateness to the site and its alignment with the artist prompt; and the 
timeliness, organization and clarity of the application materials. 

All submitted artwork will remain the property of the artist. Selected artists may be 
called upon to work with either City staff or members of the McCall Public Art 
Advisory Committee, and/or a private contractor to prepare and finalize artwork for 
fabrication and installation. 

How to Apply 
Interested artists should submit the following by XXXX, 2024: 

1. Letter of interest (one page maximum) that outlines the motivation for participating
in this project and relevant experience, and explains how the submitted artwork
responds to the artist prompt.

2. Resume summarizing qualifications and/or past experience (one page maximum;
must include applicant’s contact information. Artist teams should submit one resume
for each member.

3. At least two references per artist with knowledge the artist’s work and working
methods, and the references’ contact information.

4. Image or Visual Concept: Applicants must either submit an image of an existing
original artwork, or a visual concept (such as a sketch) of their proposed artwork, in
PDF or JPEG format (300 dpi). Examples of existing artworks include illustration,
painting, digital images, photography, or photographs of an original artwork. Please
be sure to include the title, media, and date completed in addition to the image.
Visual concepts are uncompensated, so please provide just enough detail to
effectively illustrate your idea.



5. Previous Work Examples: Provide up to three example images of past and/or
current works in progress. Examples should not include artwork submitted for
consideration for this project. Include the title, media and date completed for each
example. Images should be in JPEG format, 300 dpi.

Email completed application materials to: djames@mccall.id.us with “Local Art for 
Lightboxes” in the subject line. Attachments must not exceed a total size of 7M. 
Alternatively, applicants may use a file share program and email a document link by 
the deadline. 

Seminar/Q&A on Proposal Development  
For anyone who is new to creating proposals for public art projects or has questions 
about the process, a (free) seminar and Q&A session will be held on XXXX. RSVP 
at: djames@mccall.id.us 

Anticipated Timeline 
XXXX, 2024 Applications due (see above) 
XXXX, 2024 Selection committee recommends finalist artists 
XXXX, 2024 McCall City Council approves artist selections 
Summer/Fall, 2024 Installation of vinyl wraps 

Questions? 
Please contact: Delta James, Economic Development Planner, City of McCall, Idaho 
Tel: 208-634-3504; email: djames@mccall.id.us 

Photo of a streetlight control box 
to receive artwork vinyl wrap.  

mailto:djames@mccall.id.us


 

Light control boxes within the Downtown West Urban Renewal District 

Exis�ng (6) 

To be installed 2024 (1) 

 

 

 

  




